Grace Charboneau

From: Jim Ball [imb@yatesholdings.com]

Sent: Tuesday, October 28, 2014 5:19 PM

To: grace@stratanm.com

Subject: RE: Tule Field gas and the oil marketing infrastructure
Attachments: image001.png

I am pretty sure that most of these questions will have the same answers but had to separate cut in case | was wrong in
my assumption. [t really should not be that big of a task as | think it will be repetitive answers to the questions since the
wells are in the same field and adjacent to each other. We have been netted and the Yates want to know the detaifl of
where and why their money went elsewhere and who benefited from the extreme high deduct charges.

J|m Ball =
Landman

Yates Holdings LLP

P.O.Box 1394

Artesia, NM 88211-1394
Direct Phone: (575) 736-8572
Main Phone: (575) 736-8575
Fax: (575) 736-8577

.Email: jimbh@vyatesholdings.com

This message may contain confidential information and is intended for the named recipient only. If you are not the
intended recipient you are notified that disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in reliance on the contents
of this information is strictly prohibited. E-mail transmission cannot be guaranteed to be secure or error-free as
information could be intercepted, corrupted, lost, destroyed, arrive late or incomplete, or contain viruses. The sender
therefore does not accept liability for any errors or omissions in the contents of this message, which arise as a result of
e-mail transmission: If verification is required please request a hard-copy version.
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From: Grace Charboneau [mailto:gcharboneau@stratanm.com]
Sent: Tuesday, October 28, 2014 4:43 PM

To: Jim Ball'

Subject: RE: Tule Field gas and the oil marketing infrastructure

Mr_ Jim,

As you are aware, this is a pretty big task to pull and gather this information. This is a pretty big list of questions that
will take quite a bit of effort to gather. Before | run with this and get the answers for your questions, can you please tell
me what prompted all this?

Thank you.

Grace Charboneau
Division Order Analyst

.Sovereign Exploration Company, L.L.C.
P.O. Box 968 N

Roswell, NM 88202 ’
NMOCD CASE NO. 15224

December 4, 2014
Sovereign Eagle, LLC
Exhibit No. 3-A



(575) 622-1127 Ext. 20
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From: Jim Ball [mailto:jimb@yatesholdings.com]
Sent: Tuesday, October 28, 2014 4:23 PM

To: grace@stratanm.com
Subject: Tule Field gas and the oil marketing infrastructure

Grace can you or Mitch (or someone) give me a summary and/or answers on how the gas and the oil marketing
infrastructure is set up in the Tule field?
Such as but not limited to:

Each product....Is it piped or trucked?

How many hydrocarbon products are being processed? Who are the purchasers of the various individual products?

If applicable, who is the processor...or “Processing Company”? How much are they charging?

Who transports the products to the contracting purchasing company for each product and who is that? How much are
they charging?

if applicable, is fuel from the lease being used in its operations? If so, is the fuel staying on the lease or is it being used
off lease as well...or both? How much are they charging/crediting for it to be used off lease?

If applicable, who is the compression deduction being paid to? How much are they charging?

If applicable, who is the dehydration deduction being paid to? How much are they charging?

If applicable, is there a gathering charge and if so who is that being paid to? How much are they charging?

If applicable, is there a processing deduction and if so who is that being paid to? How much are they charging?

If applicable, is there a treating deduction and if so who is that being paid to? How much are they charging?

Is there any other cost associated with the production and extraction of minerals that are being deducted from the
royalty owners and if so what are they and who is being paid? How much are they charging?

Also, what taxes are being withheld and if state tax is being withheld why are they?

Will additional wells in the Tule field be subject to EXACTLY the same existing charges and EXACTLY the same Revised
Division Order and Marketing Agreement that was executed earlier this year on the Cook #1, Wendell Best #1, JT McGee

Com #1 and the Perry #1? If not, how will it be different?

Thanks.

Jim Ball
Landman

Yates Holdings LLP

P.0.Box 1394

Artesia, NM 88211-1394

Direct Phone: (575) 736-8572
Main Phone: (575) 736-8575
Fax: {575) 736-8577

Email: jimb@yatesholdings.com




This message may contain confidential information and is intended for the named recipient only. If you are not the
intended recipient you are notified that disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in reliance on the contents
of this information is strictly prohibited. E-mail transmission cannot be guaranteed to be secure or error-free as

. information could be intercepted, corrupted, lost, destroyed, arrive late or incomplete, or contain viruses. The sender
therefore does not accept liability for any errors or omissions in the contents of this message, which arise as a result of
e-mail transmission. If verification is required please request a hard-copy version.



Grace Charboneau

From: Jim Balt [imb@yatesholdings.com]

Sent: Monday, October 27, 2014 5:20 PM

To: grace@stratanm.com

Cc: ‘Mitch Krakauskas'

Subject: RE: Counter on Tule Field OGL of Sovereign.
Attachments: image001.png

Grace and Mitch,

Returned mid-morning and went through a lot of emails on this and other topics. | have had meetings most of the day
since arriving. Might be best if Mitch wants to talk and try me tomorrow. Will be gone to Okla. City for several Dr.
appointments starting on Wed. afternoon through Thursday and Friday. Returning on Monday 1:00 PM.

| see the best chance of this being resolved if we go back to the initial suggestions | sent to your company. We are too
far apart on what is a reasonable offer using your form and terms. Respectfuily I/we do not agree with your claims for
offering terms that in your opinion are reasonable and fair. We will remain hopeful that we can work things out and |
have given indications to you both of how | think it could be best accomplished.

Jim Ball
Ltandman

Yates Holdings LLP

P.O.Box 1394

Artesia, NM 88211-1394

Direct Phone: {575) 736-8572
Main Phone: (575) 736-8575
Fax: (575) 736-8577

Email: imb@yatesholdings.com

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
Sent: Friday, October 24, 2014 2:28 PM

To: Jim Ball'

Cc: 'Mitch Krakauskas'

Subject: RE: Counter on Tule Field OGL of Sovereign.

r. Jim,
.Xltached is the revised lease with your changes and our changes. Please review the changes and let me know if you
have any questions. .



Also, Mitch would like to speak to you tomorrow sometime about the lease. If you can please give me your cell number
or will call Mitch on his at (575} 420-1181, | would greatly appreciate it.

Thank you for your help. Have a good day and great weekend.

Grace Charboneau
Division Order Analyst

Sovereign Exploration Company, L.L.C.
P.O. Box 968

Roswell, NM 88202

(575) 622-1127 Ext. 20
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From: Jim Ball [mailto:jimb@vyatesholdings.com]
Sent: Thursday, October 23, 2014 3:31 PM

To: grace@stratanm.com
Subject: RE: Counter on Tule Field OGL of Sovereign.

Running late out the door. As to the terms | have gone over the lease with Mr. Yates and these are those are the things
within your lease form we want changed if we use your lease form. Your marketing charges effect the net royalty we
receive and thus Mr. Yates wants me to come back to him to see what you agree to change or not and he will be the one
that decides what he will accept or not after seeing the changes....not me. As | said in an earlier email | will do my best to

.get him to agree but the lease form is VIP too. Using your lease form messed up the normal way we do things in
presenting ...one of the reasons | did not want to use it. Honestly going out the door now.

Jim Ball
Landman

Yates Holdings LLP

P. 0. Box 1394

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
Sent: Thursday, October 23, 2014 3:25 PM
To: 'Jim Ball'

‘Subject: RE: Counter on Tule Field OGL of Sovereign.

Mr. Jim,
I'm sorry to hear about the loss of your friend. Our condolences to you.

As far as the length, this is something that you have revised on our lease form to three years. Sovereign is fine with the
three year term. | would assume since you revised it to that, it was an acceptable term when you sent it back to me with
the revisions.

With the bonus and royalty, we have [eased the majority of the other mineral owners with the same terms that we are
offering Yates Brothers. We do not feel it is fair or ethical to offer you a higher rate of bonus or royalty. | honestly
would not feel right to offer a higher royalty rate or higher bonus. We are trying to keep everyone equal. We feel that
every royalty owner is just as important as the other one. If you can please tell me why Yates Brothers minerals are
worth more than the other mineral owners, | would love to listen and entertain the reasoning and offer. Sovereign
wants every mineral owner to be treated equally and fairly. It is only right for everyone to be offered the same royalty
rate and bonus payment terms to lease their mineral interest.

| will get the revisions to you first thing in the morning.

Thank you for your quick response. Be careful in your travels. Have a fantastic evening.

Grace Charboneau
.Division Order Analyst

Sovereign Exploration Company, L.L.C.

P.O. Box 968
Roswell, NM 88202
. (575) 622-1127 Ext. 20

From: Jim Ball [mailto:jimb@yatesholdings.com]
Sent: Thursday, October 23, 2014 2:52 PM

To: grace@stratanm.com
Subject: RE: Counter on Tule Field OGL of Sovereign,

That will be fine. | still do not know if the terms will be accepted in terms of bonus, length and royalty but for sure we
need to have a good lease form. | am leaving for the funeral in 10 minutes but will be here on Monday mid morn.

Thanks. Have a good day.

Jim Ball
Landman

.Yates Holdings LLP

P. 0. Box 1394

~



Artesia, N\M 88211-1394

Direct Phone: (575) 736-8572

‘Main Phone: (575) 736-8575
ax: (575) 736-8577

Email: jimb@vyatesholdings.com

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
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From: Grace Charboneau {mailto:qcharboneau@stratanm.com]
Sent: Thursday, October 23, 2014 2:51 PM-

To: Jim Ball'

Subject: RE: Counter on Tule Field OGL of Sovereign.

Mr. Jim,

I am currently working on the revisions that you requested and also placing Mitch's revision and what will be accepted
and not. | should have this done by Friday and it will be waiting on you to see if it is acceptable or not.

Have a great day.

Grace Charboneau
Division Order Analyst

.Soverelgn Exploration Company, L.L.C.
P.O. Box 968
Roswell, NM 88202
(575) 622-1127 Ext. 20
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From: Jim Ball {mailto:jimb@yatesholdings.com]
Sent: Tuesday, October 21, 2014 2:43 PM

To: grace@stratanm.com
Subject: RE: Counter on Tule Field OGL of Sovereign.

Grace, | have gone over the Sovereign lease form with Mr. Yates. Please see the requested changes that are attached
and note the exhibit A that is also attached. Let use this rough amend version to settle our differences if that is possible.
You may be able to read the hand writing better if blown up. H not let me know and | can read it to you in certain
instances. Note that the last sentence of paragraph 14 which | crossed our | do have flexibility in what we can accept. |
think the wording could be left in if it had a sentence added afterwards that said the interest would not be unreasanably

held in suspense.

If we do not settle the differences then we know if will be force pooled. | however wauld have to ask for a continuance
because of several follow-up medical appointments that | cannot miss in Okiahoma City on October 30th. If it had to be
continued then | will also not be able to attend a hearing on November 17" and 18 due to appearing as a witness in
-ederal Court in Albuquerque.



| will be leaving for Santa Barbara, California on this Thursday afternoon to attend a funeral of a friend of mine and Mark
Murphy’s (Jim Dawson). | will return on Monday mid-day so if we can get this resolved before I leave that would be
great.

Jim Ball
Landman

Yates Holdings LLP

P. 0. Box 1394

Artesia, NM 88211-1394

Direct Phone: (575} 736-8572
Main Phone: (575) 736-8575
Fax: (575} 736-8577

Email: imb@yatesholdings.com

This message may contain confidential information and is intended for the named recipient only. if you are not the
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

.rom: Grace Charboneau [mailto:gcharboneau@stratanm.com]
Sent: Monday, October 20, 2014 4:28 PM
To: 'Jim Ball'
Subject: RE: counter Tule Field

Mr. Jim,
Well | hope your travels were good and safe last week. It is always nice to get out of town to get a change of scenery.

Thank you for your response to my previous email and phone calls. | would love to still try to reach an agreement on
the fease if at all possible.

Currently, we have several hundreds of different mineral owners that are currently on the lease form that we presented
to you. We would like to continue to use our lease form at this time. if you would like to change the lease form that |
sant to you around, then | would be more than happy to present it to Mitch at that time. Without knowing for sure
what you do not like about our |ease form, it is hard to know if we can work with it or not. | know thatitis a
tremendous amount of work for you and [ apologize for that, but please take a moment to try to do the changes to the

form that | sent to you please.

The title opinion is something that is provided to working interest owners because it is paid for by the working interests
owners typically. As far as royalty owners and the title opinions, we will provide the section of the title opinion that
pertains to the royalty owners only and not a full copy of it at this time.

We are offering for Yates Brothers or any another party mineral owner to become a working interest owner if they
ish. If you choose to do a farmout agreement to YPC, that might be a good opinion for Yates Brothers. However, the
‘;rmout agreement is your choice. We are not going to tell you one way or the other on what you should do. This
would be completely your choice on what you would like to do.

5



| truly wish | could offer more than the 1/6 royalty and the $25.00 per net mineral acre, but as we are all aware of the
issues we have in that area, it is difficult for production alone. If | could offer more like we could in the Permian Basin, |
wauld love to. The Tule field/Wildcat Area will not allow for it to work for everyone,

Please look at our lease and start doing changes so that | have a place to start. Please let me know if it is just really not
an opinion. We are still planning on going forward with the force pooling that is set at the end of this month.

Thank you for your time.

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
Sent: Friday, October 17, 2014 2:23 PM
To: grace@stratanm.com

Subject: counter Tule Field

.Grace,

The Sovereign lease has too many changes. Don t have time to change ..that would take too long..... I do not like it ... It
is the worst | have ever seen in my career and | cannot in good conscience put it in front of the Yates and say signit. it
would take ups to many hours or days of negotiating back and forth and | do not believe some issues would be solvable
if Soveriegn cannot even agree to let us have a copy of title opinions for our files. The lease form | am presenting to
Sovereign as a counter is a lease form that probably works for everyone in the Permian...and beyond. No one yet has
had a problem with it that | have found. Mitch needs to get me the wording that he is concerned with on the gas
processing and | will run it by the Yates for approval. (Fingers crossed.) We can argue all day about the fact that title
opinions are given to W owners but ) agree with that statement because they pay for it. EQUALLY AS COMMON AS
THAT IS THE FACT THAT industry royalty owners require the same thing in their standard lease forms and that is what
the Yates family is requiring just like all the other industry royalty owners.

Try getting a lease without giving a TO and well info from the Cowdens, Scarburoughs, DK Boyd, Everett Haley, Andy
Grooms, Featherstones, Tom and Tim Jennings to name a few. Yes we will be a royalty owner but this will be a condition
of the lease......and such a condition or request is normal for an industry royalty owner such as Murphy to ask for it.

Final point, Murphy Qil Corp. has required it of me in the past | am 99% sure of it. Look at it this way too. | can flip it to
YPC or another party and they then give Sovereign a farmout agreement ..... such a title opinion and well data would
also be normatl in the requirement of the farmout agreement ....... So does Sovereign want to deal with another party in
negotiating a FO Agreement? Probably not. [ hope we can agree to get the T.O. topic resolved in about one second
and move on to the more important issues of the wording of the processing the gas etc.

tt will cost Sovereign 2 minutes of time and about $3.00 of ink to satisfy this issue. | further would see it as a courtesy
.when Sovereign is offering only $25.00 per net acre and 1/6 royalty on a field that is has been producing for 30 years.

{ am late leaving town and am going out the door. Thasnk.
6



Jim Ball
Landman

Yates Holdings LLP

P.0.Box 1394

Artesia, NM 88211-1394

Direct Phone: (575) 736-8572
Main Phone: {(575) 736-8575
Fax: (575) 736-8577

Email: jimb®@yatesholdings.com

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
Sent: Friday, October 17, 2014 1:00 PM
To: Jim Ball'
.Subject: RE: Looks like I misspelled Sovereign's name on the Exhbit A header. I will change that.

Mr. Jim,

| spoke to Mitch again about the title opinions and the drilling opinions. He basically said that we would provide you
with a copy of yaur section of the title opinion as a royalty owner. The full title opinion will not be provided to a royalty
owner because the royalty owner was not helping pay for the title opinion cost. Also, in the past, you might have been
working for a participant in the well and that is why you may not have had a problem getting the copy of the title
opinion in the past.

| have attached a copy of the original lease that was sent to you. If you don't mind, please go through and do the
changes in our lease that you do not like and add the things that are important to you in. Mitch might come off on some
of the things in the lease, but | cannot promise anything. The document is set up to where it will track changes as you
type or delete. Hf you can do this, maybe we might be a step closer to putting this to bed.

Thank you for your help. Have a great day.

Grace Charboneau
Division Order Analyst

Sovereign Exploration Company, L.L.C.
P.O. Box 968

Roswell, NM 88202

(575) 622-1127 Ext. 20



From: Jum Ball [mallto 1rmb@vatesholqus com]
Sent: Thursday, October 16, 2014 4:54 PM
To: grace@stratanm.com
.Subject: Looks like I misspelled Sovereign's name on the Exhbit A header. I will change that.

Looks like | misspelled Sovereign's name on the Exhibit A header. | will change that.

Jim Ball
Landman

Yates Holdlngs LLP

P. 0. Box 1394

Artesia, NM 88211-1394

Direct Phone: (575) 736-8572
Main Phone: {575) 736-8575
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
.e-mail transmission. If verification is required please request a hard-copy version.



Grace Charboneau

From: Jim Ball [jimb@yatesholdings.com]
ra Sent: Monday, June 23, 2014 1:04 PM
. To: grace@stratanm.com
Subject: RE: Additional Mineral Interest to Lease
Attachments: image001.png

Good afternoon Grace... | am just now back in the office so call me when its convenient for you.... I'm cleaning out
emails that came in while | was gone presently , so call anytime. Direct line is below.

Jim Ball
Landman

Yates Holdings LLP

P.0O.Box 1394

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

.intended recipient you are notified that disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in reliance on the contents
of this information is strictly prohibited. E-mail transmission cannot be guaranteed to be secure or error-free as
information could be intercepted, corrupted, lost, destroyed, arrive late or incomplete, or contain viruses. The sender
therefore does not accept liability for any errors or omissions in the contents of this message, which arise as a resuit of
e-mail transmission. If verification is required please request a hard-copy version.
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From: Grace Charboneau [mailto:gcharboneau@stratanm.com]
Sent: Monday, June 23, 2014 9:22 AM

To: Jim Bali'

Subject: Additional Mineral Interest to Lease

Mr. Jim,

It have been a while since | talked to you. | hope everything is going well for you. When you get a chance, can you
please give me a call to talk about leasing some other interest that Yates Brothers has? My number is 575-622-1127 ext.
20. ! would love to talk to you when you get a chance please.

Have a fabulous day.

Grace Charboneau
Division Order Analyst

.Sovereign Exploration Company, L.L.C.

P.O. Box 968
Roswell, NM 88202
™ (575) 622-1127 Ext. 20



Sovereign Exploration, LL.C
P.O. Box 968

Roswell, NM 88202-0968
Phone: (575) 622-1127 Fax: (575) 623-3533

August 21, 2014

Yates Brothers, a Partnership
ATTN: Jim Balt, Landman
PO Box 1394

Artesia, NM 88211

Re:  Township 2 South, Range 29 East
Section 26: N/2, SE/4
Containing 480 gross acres, more or less
Roosevelt County, New Mexico

Dear Mr. Ball:

Pursuant to our previous telephone conversation, Sovereign Exploration, LLC would like
to lease your mineral interest in the above described land for oil and all gas. Enclosed please
find the following:

- A W9 for our records and tax purposes

- An Oil and Gas Lease, and one (1) copy thereof for your file, providing for a five (5)
year primary term and 1/6th royalty

We are offering $592.73 representing the consideration for a five (5) year paid up lease
calculated as follows: 23.7092 net acres [(your 0.0493942308 mineral interest 480.00 gross
acres] x $25.00.

If this offer is acceptable to you, please do the following:

- Sign a copy of the Qil and Gas Lease in the presence of a notary public at your
earliest convenience and send back to the following address:
Sovereign Exploration Company, LLC
ATTN: Grace Charboneau
P.O. Box 968
Roswell, NM 88202

- Fill out the provided W9 and include it with the signed and notorized lease.
This offer is made subject to approval of title. Upon receipt of the signed agreement a

check will be mailed to you. If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to call me at
(575) 622-1127 Extention 20.

Sincerely, -

Grace Charboneau
Division Order Analyst
IS

Enclosures: Two (2) Oil and Gas Lease



*" PRODUCERS 88-PAID UP ~
Revised

OIL AND GAS LEASE

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT is made as of the 21th day of August 2014.between Yates Brothers, a Partnership, whose address is
PO Box 1394, Artesia, NM 88211 as Lessor (whether one or more), and Sovereign Exploration Company, LLC, whose address is
P.O. Box 968, Roswell, NM 88202, as Lessee. All printed portions of this lease were prepared by the party hereinabove named as
Lessee, but all other provisions (including the completion of blank spaces) were prepared jointly by Lessor and Lessee.

1. Grant of Leased Premises. In consideration of a cash bonus in hand paid and the covenants herein contained, Lessor héreby
grants, leases and lets exclusively to Lessee the following described land, hereinafter called Leased Premises:

Township 2 South, Range 29 East, NMPM
Section 26: N/2, SE/4

these lands being located in the County of Roosevelt, State of New Mexico, containing 23.7092 net acres, whether it actually
comprises more or less (including any interests therein which Lessor may hereafter acquire by reversion, prescription, re-survey, or
otherwise), for the purpose of exploring for, developing, producing and marketing oil and gas, along with all hydrocarbon products
and by-products, and non-hydrocarbon substances produced in association therewith (“Oil and Gas Substances”). This lease also
covers and includes all land owned or claimed by Lessor adjacent or contiguous to the land particularly described above, whether or
not the same be within the boundaries of the land particularly described above. The term “gas” as used herein includes helium, carbon
dioxide, gaseous sulfur compounds, methane produced from coal formations and other commercial gases, as well as normal
hydrocarbon gases. In addition to the above-described land, this lease and the term “Leased Premises™ also covers accretions and
strips or parcels of land now or hereafter owned by Lessor which are contiguous or adjacent to the above-described land, and, in
consideration of the aforementioned cash bonus, Lessor agrees to execute at Lessee’s request any additional or supplemental
instruments for a more complete or accurate description of the land so covered. For the purpose of determining the amount of any
payments based on acreage hereunder, the number of gross acres above specified shall be deemed correct, whether actually more or

less.

2. Consideration. In exchange for Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable consideration, the terms of which shall
remain confidential, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Lessor hereby conveys and exchanges this

.Agreement.

3 Ancillary Rights. The rights granted to Lessee hereunder shall include the right of ingress and egress on the Leased Premises or
lands pooled or unitized therewith, along with such rights as may be reasonably necessary to conduct operations for exploring,
developing, producing and marketing Oil and Gas Substances, including but not limited to geophysical operations, the drilling of
wells, and the construction and use of roads, canals, pipelines, tanks, water wells, disposal wells, injection wells {including, but not
limited to wells to inject gas, waters, other fluids, and air into subsurface strata), pits, electric and telephone lines, power stations, and
other facilities deemed necessary by Lessee to explore, discover, produce, store, treat and/or transport Oil and Gas Substances and
water produced from the Leased Premises or other lands that share central facilities and are jointly operated with the Leased Premises
for gathering, treating, compression and water disposal. In its operations, Lessee shall have free use of any Oil and Gas Substances,
water and/or other substances produced on the Leased Premises, except water from Lessor’s wells or ponds, and the royalty shall be
computed after deducting any such substances used. In exploring, developing, producing or marketing from the Leased Premises or
lands pooled or unitized therewith, the ancillary rights granted herein shall apply (a) to the entire Leased Premises, notwithstanding
any partial release or other partial termination of this lease; and (b) to any other lands in which Lessor now or hereafter has authority
to grant such rights in the vicinity of the Leased Premises or lands pooled or unitized therewith. When requested by Lessor in writing,
Lessee shall bury its pipelines below ordinary plow depth on cultivated lands. No well shall be located less than 200 feet from any
house or barn now on the Leased Premises or other lands of Lessor used by Lessee hereunder, without Lessor’s consent, and Lessee
shall pay for damage caused by its operations to buildings and other improvements now on the Leased Premises or such other lands,
and to commercial timber and growing crops thereon. Lessee shall have the right at any time to remove its fixtures, equipment and
materials, including well casing, from the Leased Premises or such other lands during the term of this lease or within a reasonable time

thereafter. ’

Lessor, by virtue of the lease,

a) grants a mineral permit for entry, exit, egress for all exploration and drilling purposes, including but not limited to surface
seismic data acquisition, cross- well seismic data acquisition, well logging and data acquisition, airborne, gravity and/or other
remote sensing data acquisition for the term of the lease; and

b) to the extent Lessor owns or controls surface rights, grants a surface permit for entry, exit, egress for all exploration and
rilling purposes, including but ~ not limited to surface seismic data acquisition, cross-well seismic data acquisition, well logging
and data acquisition, airborne, gravity, and /or other remote  sensing data acquisition for the term of the lease; and

c) to the extent Lessor owns or controls surface rights, grants rights-of-way for entry, exit and egress for all exploration,
drilling and development purposes including but not limited to surface vehicles, electrification, oil and gas pipeline, and all related
producing infrastructure.

4  Term of Lease. This lease shall be in force for a primary term of five (5) years from the date hereof, and for as long thereafter as
oil or gas or other substances covered hereby are produced from the Leased Premises or from lands pooled or unitized therewith or
this lease is otherwise maintained in effect pursuant to the provisions hereof. Lessee is hereby given the option, to bé exercised prior
to the date on which this lease or any portion thereof would expire in accordance with its terms and provisions, of extending this lease
for a period of five (5) years as to all or any portion of the acreage then held hereunder which would expire unless so extended, the
only action required by Lessee to exercise this option being the payment to Lessor (delivered by certified mail to the address
hereinabove identified for Lessor) of the additional consideration of the sum equal to that paid for primary term, which payment shall
cover the five (5) year term extension. If this lease is extended as to only a portion of the acreage then covered hereby, Lessee shall
esignate such portion by a recordable instrument and the additional consideration shall be proportionately reduced.



Operations. If Lessee drills a well which Lessee determines is uneconomic (hereinafter called “dry hole”) on the Leased
Premises or lands pooled or unitized therewith, or if all production permanently ceases from any cause, including a revision of unit
boundaries pursuant to the provisions of this lease or the action of any governmental authority, then in the event this lease is not
otherwise being maintained in force it shall nevertheless remain in force if Lessee commences further operations for reworking an
existing well or for drilling an additional well or for otherwise obtaining or restoring production on the Leased Premises or lands
pooled or unitized therewith within 180 days after completion of operations on such dry hole or within 180 days afier such cessation
of all production. If after the primary 'term this lease is not otherwise being maintained in force, but Lessee is then engaged in
Operations, as defined below, this lease shall remain in force so long as any one or more of such Operations are prosecuted with no
interruption of more than 180 consecutive days, and if any such Operations result in the production of Oil and Gas Substances, as long
thereafter as there is production from the Leased Premises or lands pooled or unitized therewith. After completion of a well
hereunder, Lessee shall drill such additional wells on the Leased Premises or lands pooled or unitized therewith as a reasonably
prudent operator would drill under the same or similar circumstances to (a) develop the Leased Premises , or (b) protect the Leased
Premises from uncompensated drainage by any well or wells located on other lands not pooled or unitized therewith. There shall be no
covenant to drill exploratory wells or any additional wells except as expressly provided herein. Notwithstanding anything herein to the
contrary, Lessee shall not be required to drill additional wells or produce Oil and Gas Substances from existing wells that in Lessee's
sole opinion are uneconomic or inadequately priced in the market. As used herein, the term Operations shall mean any activity
conducted on or off the Leased Premises that is reasonably calculated to obtain or restore production, including without limitation,
(i) drilling or any act preparatory to drilling (such as obtaining permits, surveying a drill site, staking a drill site, building roads,
clearing a drill site, or hauling equipment or supplies); (ii) reworking, hydraulic fracturing, plugging back, deepening, treating, testing,
stimulating, refitting, installing any artificial lift or production-enhancement equipment or technique; (iii) constructing facilities
related to the production, treatment, transportation and marketing of substances produced from the lease premises; (iv) contracting for
marketing services and sale of Oil and Gas Substances; and (v) construction of water disposal facilities and the physical movement of
water produced from the Leased Premises.

6.  Shut-in Royalty. If at any time when this lease is not validated by other provisions hereof and there is a gas and/or oil well on
said land, or land pooled therewith, but gas or oil is not being so sold or used and such well is shut in, either before or after production
therefrom, then on or before 180 days after said well is shut in, and thereafter at annual intervals, lessee may pay or tender an advance
shut-in royalty equal to $1.00 per net acre of lessor's gas acreage then held under this lease by the party making such payment or
tender, and so long as said shut-in royalty is paid or tendered, this lease shall not terminate and it shall be considered under all clauses
hereof that gas is being produced from the leased premises in paying quantities, Each such payment shall be paid or tendered to the
party or parties who at the time of such payment would be entitled to receive the royalties which would be paid under this lease if the
well were in fact producing. The payment or tender of royalties and shut-in royalties may be made by check or draft. Any timely
payment or tender of shut-in royalty which is made in a bona fide attempt to make proper payment, but which is erroneous in whole or
in part as to parties or amounts, shall nevertheless be sufficient to prevent termination of this lease in the same manner as though a
proper payment had been made if lessee shall correct such error within 90 days after lessee has received written notice thereof by
certified mail from the party or parties entitled to receive payment together with such written instruments (or certified copies thereof)
as are necessary to enable lessee to make proper payment. The amount realized from the sale of oil or gas on or off the premises shall
be the price established by the sales contract entered into in good faith by lessee and purchaser for such term and under such
conditions as are customary in the industry. "Price" shall mean the net amount received by lessee after giving effect to applicable
regulatory orders and after application of any applicable price adjustments specified in such contract or regulatory orders. Lessee’s
failure to properly pay shut-in royalty shall render Lessee liable for the amount due, but shall not operate to terminate this lease.

7.  Royalty Payment. For all Oil and Gas Substances that are physically produced from the Leased Premises, or lands pooled,
unitized or communitized therewith, and sold, lessor shall receive as its royalty one-sixth (1/6th) of the sales proceeds actually
received by Lessee or, if applicable, its affiliate, as a result of the first sale of the affecied production to an unaffiliated party, less this
same percentage share of all Post Production Costs and this same percentage share of all production, severance and ad valorem taxes.
As used in this provision, Post Production Costs shall mean all costs actually incurred by Lessee or ils affiliate and all losses of
produced volumes whether by use as fuel, line loss, flaring, venting or otherwise from and after the wellhead to the point of sale.
These costs include without limitation, all costs of gathering, marketing, compression, dehydration, transportation, removal of liquid
or gaseous substances or impurities from the affected production, and any other treatment or processing required by the first
unaffiliated party who purchases the affected production. For royalty calculation purposes, Lessee shall never be required to adjust
the sales proceeds to account for the purchaser’s costs or charges downstream of the point of sale.

Lessee or its affiliate shall have the right to construct, maintain and operate any facilities providing some or all of the services
dentified as Post Production Costs. If this occurs, the actual costs of such facilities shall be included in the Post Production Costs as a
per barrel or per mcf charge, as appropriate, calculated by spreading the construction, maintenance and operating costs for such
facilities over the reasonably estimated total production volumes attributable to the well or wells using such facilities.

Lessee shall have free use of Qil and Gas Substances to assist in producing or enhancing production of Oil and Gas Substances and
Lessor’s royalty shall be computed after deducting any Oil and Gas Subsiances so used. If Lessee uses the Oil and Gas Subsiances
(other than to assist in producing or enhancing production of Oil and Gas Substances or as fuel in connection with the production and
sale thereof) in lieu of receiving sale proceeds, the price to be used under this provision shall be based upon arm's-length sale(s) to
unaffiliated parties for the applicable month that are obtainable, comparable in terms of quality and quantity, and in closest proximity
to the Leased Premises. Such comparable arm's-length sales price shall be less any Post Production Costs applicable to the specific
arms-length transaction that is utilized.

8. Pooling and Unitization. Lessee, at its option, is hereby given the right and power at any time and from time to time as a
recurring right, either before or after production, as to all or any part of the Leased Premises described herein and as to any one or
more of the formations, subsurface depths, or horizons hereunder, to pool or unitize the leasehold estate and the mineral estate covered

y this lease with other land, lease or leases in the immediate vicinity for the production of oil and gas, or separately for the production
‘;f either, when in Lessee’s judgment it is necessary or advisable to do so, and irrespective of whether authority similar to this exists
with respect to such other land, lease or leases. Likewise, units previously formed to include formations not producing oil or gas, may

be reformed to exclude such non-producing formations. The forming or reforming of any unit shall be accomplished by Lessee
executing and filing of record in the county in which the lease premises are located either before or after completion of well(s) a
declaration of such pooling, unitization or reformation, which declaration shall describe the unit. Any unit may include land upon



which a well has theretofore been completed or upon which operations for drilling have theretofore been commenced. Production,
drilling or reworking operations, or a well shut in for want of a market anywhere on a unit which includes all or a part of this lease,
shall be treated as if it were production, drilling or reworking operations or a well shut in for want of market under this lcase. In licu
of the royalties elsewhere herein specified, including shut-in gas royalties, Lessor shall receive on production from the unit so pooled
royalties only on the portion of such production that the total number of surface acres covered by this lease and included in the unit
bears to the total number of surface acres in such unit. In addition to the foregoing, Lessee shall have the right but not the obligation
to unitize, pool, or combine all or any part of the above described lands or interest therein as to one or more of the formations
thereunder with other lands in the same general area by entering in one or more coopcrative or unit plan of development(s) or
operation (approved by any governmental authority, if required by law) and, from time to time, with like approval if required by law,
to modify, change or terminate any such plan or agreement. In such event, the terms, conditions, and provisions of this lease shall be
deemed modified to conform to the terms, conditions, and provisions of such approved cooperative or unit plan of development or
operation and, particularly, all drilling and development requirements of this lease, express or implied, shall be satisfied by
compliance with the drilling and development requirements of such plan or agreement, and this lease shall not terminate or expire
during the life of such plan or agreement. In the event that said above described lands, or any part thercof, shall hereafter be operated
under any such cooperative or unit plan of development or operation whereby the production therefrom is allocated to different
portions of the land covered by said plan, then the production allocated to any particular tract of land shall, for the purpose of
computing the royalties to be paid hereunder to Lessor, be regarded as having been produced from the particular tract of land to which
it is allocated and not to any other tract of land; and the royalty payments to be made hereunder to Lessor shall be based upon
production only as so allocated. Lessor shall formally express Lessor’s consent to any cooperative or unit plan of development or
operation adopted by Lessee and, if required by law then approved by any governmental agency, by executing the same upon request
of Lessee. Upon permanent cessation thereof, Lessee may terminate the unit by filing of record a written declaration describing the
unit and stating the date of termination. Pooling hereunder shall not constitute a cross-conveyance of interests.

9. Payment Reductions. If Lessor owns less than the full mincral estate in all or any part of the Leased Premises, payment of
royalties and shut-in royalties hereunder shall be reduced as follows: royalties and shut-in royalties for any well on any part of the
Leased Premises or lands pooled therewith shall be reduced to the proportion that Lessor’s interest in such part of the Leased Premises
bears to the full mineral estate in such part of the Leased Premises. To the extent any royalty or other payment attributable to the

ineral estate covered by this lease is payable to someone other than Lessor, such royalty or other payment shall be deducted from the

corresponding amount otherwise payable to Lessor hereunder.

10.  Ownership Changes. The interest of either Lessor or Lessee hereunder may be assigned, devised or otherwise transferred in
whole or in part, by area and/or by depth or zone, and the rights and obligations of the parties hereunder shall extend to their
respective heirs, devisees, executors, administrators, successors and assigns. No change in Lessor’s ownership shall have the effect of
reducing the rights or enlarging the obligations of Lessee hereunder, and no change in ownership shall be binding on Lessce until 60
days after Lessee has been furnished the original or duly authenticated copies of the documents establishing such change of ownership
to the satisfaction of Lessee or until Lessor has satisfied the notification requirements contained in Lessee’s usual form of division
order. In the event of the death of any person entitled to shut-in royalties hereunder, Lessee may pay or tender such shut-in royalties to
the credit of decedent or decedent’s estate. If at any time two or more persons are entitled to shut-in royalties hereunder, Lessee may
pay or tender such shut-in royalties to such persons either jointly or separately in proportion to the intcrest which each owns. If Lessee
transfers its interest hereunder in whole or in part Lessee shall be relieved of all obligations thereafter arising with respect to the
transferred interest, and failure of the transferee to satisfy such obligations with respect to the transferred interest shall not affect the
rights of Lessee with respect to any interest not so transferred. 1f Lessee transfers a full or undivided interest in all or any portion of
the area covered by this lease, the obligation to pay or tender shut-in royalties hereunder shall be divided between Lessee and the
transferee in proportion to the net acreage interest in this lease then held by each.

11. Release of Lease. Lessee may, at any time and from time to time, deliver to Lessor or file of record a written release of this
lease as to a full or undivided interest in all or any portion of the area covered by this lease or any depths or zones thereunder, and
shall thereupon be relieved of all obligations thereafter arising with respect to the interest so released. If Lessee releases less than all of
the interest or area covered hereby, Lessee’s obligation to pay or tender shut-in royalties shall be proportionately reduced in
accordance with the net acreage interest retained hereunder.

12. Regulation and Delay. Lessee’s obligations under this lease, whether express or implied, shall be subject to all applicable
laws, rules, regulations and orders of any governmental authority having jurisdiction, including restrictions on the drilling and
production of wells, and regulation of the price or transportation of oil, gas and other substances covered hereby. When drilling,

.eworking, production or other operations are prevented or delayed by such laws, rules, regulations or orders, or by inability to obtain
necessary permits, equipment, services, material, water, electricity, fuel, access or easements, or by fire, flood, adverse weather
conditions, war, sabotage, rebellion, insurrection, riot, strike or labor disputes, or by inability to obtain a satisfactory market for
production or failure of purchasers or carriers to take or transport such production, or by any other cause not reasonably within
Lessee’s control, this lease shall not terminate because of such prevention or delay, and, at Lessee’s option, the period of such
prevention or delay shall be added to the term hereof. Lessee shall not be liable for breach of any provisions or implied covenants of
this lease when drilling, production or other operations are so prevented or delayed.

13.  Breach or Default. No litigation shall be initiated by Lessor for damages, forfciture or cancellation with respect to any breach
or default by Lessee hereunder, for a period of at least 90 days after Lessor has given Lessee written notice fully describing the breach
or default, and then only if Lessee fails to remedy the breach or default within such period. In the event the matter is litigated and there
is a final judicial determination that a breach or default has occurred, this lease shall not be forfeited or cancelled in whole or in part
unless Lessee is given a reasonable time afier said judicial determination to remedy the breach or default and Lessee fails to do so.

14, Title. Lessor hereby warrants and agrees to defend title conveyed to Lessee hereunder, and agrees that Lessee at Lessee’s
option may pay and discharge any taxes, mortgages or liens existing, levied or assessed on or against the Leased Premises. If Lessee

.xercises such option, Lessee shall be subrogated to the rights of the party to whom payment is made, and, in addition to its other
rights, may reimburse itself out of any royalties or shut-in royalties otherwise payable to Lessor hereunder. In the event Lessee is
made aware of any claim inconsistent with Lessor’s title, Lessee may suspend the payment of royalties and shut-in royalties
hereunder, without interest, until Lessee has been furnished satisfactory evidence that such claim has been resolved.



N WITNESS WHEREOF, this lease is executed to be effective as of the date first written above, but upon execution shall be
binding on the signatory and the signatory’s heirs, devisees, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, whether or not this
lease has been executed by all parties hereinabove named as Lessor.

LESSORS:
Yates Brothers, a Partnership
By: Yates Private Equity I LLP, Partner

By:

John A. Yates, Jr.

Title: Manager

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

NOTE:
The following forms of acknowledgment are the short forms approved by the Uniform Law on Notorial Acts. The validity

and effect of these forms in any state will depend upon the statutes of the state.

Individual Acknowledgment

STATE OF )
)§ ss.
COUNTY OF )
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me, this day of , 2014, by John A. Yates, Jr., as

Manager of Yates Brothers, a Partnership, a New Mexico Partnership.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:




Grace Charboneau

e e e — e ey ——————————

rom: Grace Charboneau [gcharboneau@stratanm.com)]
. ‘ent: Thursday, August 21, 2014 4:16 PM
To: 'Jim Ball'
Subject: Lease
Attachments: Yates Brothers Lease.pdf; Yates Brothers Letter.pdf
Mr. Jim,

Can please review this for me?

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
ATTN: Jim Ball, Landman
PO Box 1394

Artesia, NM 88211

Re: Township 2 South, Range 29 East
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
calculated as follows: 23.7092 net acres [(your 0.0493942308 mincral interest 480.00 gross
acres] x $25.00.

If this offer is acceptable to you, please do the following:

- Sign a copy of the Oil and Gas Lease in the presence of a notary public at your
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

Sincerely,

Grace Charboneau
Division Order Analyst

Enclosures: Two (2) Oil and Gas Lease



PRODUCERS 88-PAID UP
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

1. Grant of Leased Premises. In consideration of a cash bonus in hand paid and the covenants herein contained, Lessor hereby
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
not the same be within the boundaries of the land particularly described above. The term “gas™ as used herein includes helium, carbon
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
payments based on acreage hereunder, the number of gross acres above specified shall be deemed correct, whether actuatly more or

less.

2. Consideration. In exchange for Ten Dollars ($10.00) and olher‘good and valuable consideration, the terms of which shall
remain confidential, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Lessor hereby conveys and exchanges this
Agreement.

3 Ancillary Rights. The rights granted to Lessee hereunder shall include the right of ingress and egress on the Leased Premises or
lands pooled or unitized therewith, along with such rights as may be reasonably necessary to conduct operations for exploring,
developing, producing and marketing Oil and Gas Substances, including but not limited to geophysical operations, the drilling of
wells, and the construction and use of roads, canals, pipelines, tanks, water wells, disposal wells, injection wells (including, but not
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

thereafter.

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
drilling purposes, including but  not limited to surface seismic data acquisition, cross-well seismic data acquisition, well logging
and data acquisition, airborne, gravity, and /or other remote  sensing data acquisition for the term of the lease; and

¢) to the extent Lessor owns or controls surface rights, grants rights-of-way for entry, exit and egress for all exploration,
drilling and development purposes including but not limited to surface vehicles, electrification, oil and gas pipeline, and all related

producing infrastructure.

4  Term of Lease. This lease shall be in force for a primary term of five (5) years from the date hereof, and for as long thereafter as
oil or gas or other substances covered hereby are preduced from the Leased Premises or from lands pooled or unitized therewith or
this lease is otherwise maintained in effect pursuant to the provisions hereof. Lessee is hereby given the option, to be exercised prior
to the date on which this Jease or any portion thereof would expire in accordance with its terms and provisions, of extending this lease
for a period of five (5) years as to all or any portion of the acreage then held hereunder which would expire unless so extended, the
only action required by Lessee to exercise this option being the payment to Lessor (delivered by certified maii to the address
hereinabove identified for Lessor) of the additional consideration of the sum equal to that paid for primary term, which payment shall
cover the five (5) year term extension. If this lease is extended as to only a portion of the acreage then covered hereby, Lessee shall
designate such portion by a recordable instrument and the additional consideration shall be proportionately reduced.



5. Operations. If Lessee drills a well which Lessee determines is uneconomic (hereinafter called “dry hole”) on the Leased
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
pooled or unitized therewith within 180 days after completion of operations on such dry hole or within 180 days after such cessation
of all production. If after the primary term this lease is not otherwise being maintained in force, but Lessee is then engaged in
Operations, as defined below, this lease shall remain in force so long as any one or more of such Operations are prosecuted with no
interruption of more than 180 consecutive days, and if any such Operations result in the production of Oil and Gas Substances, as long
thereafter as there is production from the Leased Premises or lands pooled or unitized therewith. Afier completion of a well
hereunder, Lessee shall drilt such additional wells on the Leased Premises or lands pooled or unitized therewith as a reasonably
prudent operator would drill under the same or similar circumstances to (a) develop the Leased Premises , or (b} protect the Leased
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
(i) drilling or any act preparatory to drilling (such as obtaining.permits, surveying a drill site, staking a drill site, building roads,
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

6.  Shut-in Royalty. If at any time when this lease is not validated by other provisions hereof and there is a gas and/or vil well on
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
hereof that gas is being produced from the leased premises in paying quantities. Each such payment shall be paid or tendered to the
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
proper payment had been made if lessee shall correct such ervor within 90 days after lessee has received written notice thereof by
certified mail from the party or parties entitled to receive payment together with such written instruments (or certified copies thereof)
as are necessary to enable lessee to make proper payment. The amount realized from the sale of oil or gas on or off the premises shall
be the price established by the sales coniract entered into in good faith by lessee and purchaser for such term and under such
conditions as are customary in the industry. "“Price” shall mean the net amount received by lessee after giving effect to applicable
regulatory orders and after application of any applicable price adjustments specified in such contract or regulatory orders. Lessee’s
faiiure to properly pay shut-in royaity shall render Lessee liable for the amount due, but shall not operate to terminate this lease.

7.  Royalty Payment. For all Oil and Gas Substances that are physically produced from the Leased Premises, or lands pooled,
unitized or communitized therewith, and sold, lessor shall receive as its royalty one-sixth (1/6th) of the sales proceeds actually
received by Lessee or, if applicable, its affiliate, as a result of the first sale of the affected production to an unaffiliated party, less this
same percentage share of all Post Production Costs and this same percentage share of all production, severance and ad valorem taxes.
As used in this provision, Post Production Costs shall mean all costs actually incurred by Lessee or its affiliate and all losses of
produced volumes whether by use as fuel, line loss, flaring, venting or otherwise from and after the wellhead to the point of sale.
These costs include without limitation, all costs of gathering, marketing, compression, dehydration, transportation, removat of liquid
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
identified as Post Production Costs. If this occurs, the actual costs of such facilities shall be included in the Post Production Costs as a
per barrel or per mcf charge, as appropriate, calculated by spreading the construction, maintenance and operating costs for such
facilities over the reasonably estimated total production volumes attributable to the well or wells using such facilities.

Lessee shall have free use of Oil and Gas Substances to assist in producing or enhancing production of Oil and Gas Substances and
Lessor’s royalty shall be computed after deducting any Oil and Gas Substances so used. If Lessee uses the Oil and Gas Substances
(other than to assist in producing or enhancing production of Oil and Gas Substances or as tuel in conneciion with the production and
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
by this lease with other land, lease or leases in the immediate vicinity for the production of oil and gas, or separately for the production
of either, when in Lessee’s judgment it is necessary or advisable to do so, and irrespective of whether authority similar to this exists
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



which a well has theretofore been completed or upon which operations for drilling have therelofore been commenced. Production,
drilling or reworking operations, or a well shut in for want of a market anywhere on a unit which inciudes all or a part of this lease,
shall be treated as if it were production, driiling or reworking operations or a well shut in for want of market under this lease. In lieu
of the royalties elsewhere herein specified, including shut-in gas royalties, Lessor shall receive on production from the unit so pooled
royalties only on the portion of such production that the total number of surface acres covered by this lease and inciuded in the unit
bears to the total number of surface acres in such unit. I[n addition to the foregoing, Lessee shall have the right but not the obligation
to unitize, pool, or combine all or any part of the above described lands or interest therein as to one or more of the formations
thereunder with other lands in the same general area by entering in one or more cooperative or unit plan of development(s) or
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
during the life of such plan or agreement. In the event that said above described lands, or any part thereof, shall hereafter be operated
under any such cooperative or unit plan of development or operation whereby the production therefrom is allocated to different
portions of the land covered by said plan, then the production allocated to any particular tract of land shali, for the purpose of
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

9. Payment Reductions. If Lessor owns less than the full mineral estate in all or any part of the Leased Premises, payment of
royalties and shut-in royalties hereunder shall be reduced as follows: royalties and shut-in royalties for any well on any part of the
Leased Premises or lands pooled therewith shall be reduced to the proportion that Lessor’s interest in such part of the Leased Premises
bears to the full mineral estate in such part of the Leased Premises. To the extent any royalty or other payment attributable to the
mineral estate covered by this lease is payable to someone other than Lessor, such royalty or other payment shall be deducted from the

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
reducing the rights or enlarging the obligations of Lessee hereunder, and no change in ownership shall be binding on Lessee until 60
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
pay or tender such shut-in royalties to such persons either jointly or separately in proportion to the interest which each owns. If Lessee
transfers its interest hereunder in whole or in part Lessee shall be relieved of all obligations thereafter arising with respect to the
transferred interest, and failure of the transferee to satisfy such obligations with respect to the transferred interest shall not affect the
rights of Lessee with respect to any interest not so transferred. If Lessee transfers a full or undivided interest in all or any portion of
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

12. Regulation and Delay. Lessee’s obligations under this lease, whether express or implied, shall be-subject to all applicable
laws, rules, regulations and orders of any governmental authority having jurisdiction, including restrictions on the drilling and
production of wells, and regulation of the price or transportation of oil, gas and other substances covered hereby. When drilling,
reworking, production or other operations are prevented or delayed by such laws, rules, regulations or orders, or by inability to obtain
necessary permits, equipment, services, material, water, electricity, fuel, access or easements, or by fire, flood, adverse weather
conditions, war, sabotage, rebellion, insurrection, riot, strike or labor disputes, or by inability to obtain a satisféctory market for
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

13.  Breach or Default. No litigation shall be initiated by Lessor for damages, forfeiture or cancellation with respect to any breach
or default by Lessee hereunder, for a period of at least 90 days after Lessor has given Lessce written notice fully describing the breach
or default, and then only if Lessee fails to remedy the breach or defauit within such period. In the event the matter is litigated and there
is a final judicial determination that a breach or default has occurred, this lease shall not be forfeited or cancelled in whole or in part
unless Lessee is given a reasonable time after said judicial determination to remedy the breach or default and Lessee fails to do so.

14. Title. Lessor hereby warrants and agrees to defend title conveyed to Lessee hereunder, and agrees that Lessee at Lessee’s
option may pay and discharge any taxes, mortgages or liens existing, levied or assessed on or against the Leased Premises. If Lessee
exercises such option, Lessee shall be subrogated to the rights of the party to whom payment is made, and, in addition to its other
rights, may reimburse itself out of any royalties or shut-in royalties otherwise payable to Lessor hereunder. In the event Lessee is
made aware of any claim inconsistent with Lessor’s title, Lessee may suspend the payment of royalties and shut-in royalties
hereunder, without interest, until Lessee has been furnished satisfactory evidence that such claim has been resolved.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this lease is executed to be effective as of the date first written above, but upon execution shall be
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
By: Yates Private Equity Il LLP, Partner

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

. STATE OF )
)§ ss.

COUNTY OF )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of , 2014, by John A. Yates, Jr., as
Manager of Yates Brothers, a Partnership, a New Mexico Parinership.

Notary Pub!ic

My Commission Expires:




Grace Charboneau

.lm: oo Grace Charboneau [gcharboneau@stratanm.com]
t: Wednesday, September 03, 2014 1:11 PM

To: ‘ 'Jim Ball'

Subject: RE: update

Attachments: image001.png ~

Mr. Jim,

tunderstand. However, this is a gas field in the Wildcat area. Due to the price of natural gas currently, 1/6 royalty is the
best that we can offer. We have the original lease that we believe is still in effect that is held by production, but I'm
unable to locate the ratification that was sent out at the time. | guess this is the problem when we have lots of hands
touching the same paperwork over a period of time. |just get to try to pick up the pieces. Honestly, | like to make sure
we do not have any loose ends énywhere. | will keep looking for the ratification in our office and let you know if | find
it. Things' have a way of showing up in weird places at times. Trust me...since | have been here, it is amazing what | find
from time to time. :

Just a heads up though, we are sending documentation to the attorney today to try to get the force pooling started. 1
know that this is pushing you, but { wanted to iet you know where we are at. Please et me know if there is something
that | can do to help.

Thank you for the update. Have a fabulous day.

Grace Charboneau
Division Order Analyst

‘)verelgn Exploration Company, L.L.C.
P.O. Box 968
Roswell, NM 88202
(575)622-1127 Ext. 20
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From: Jim Ball [mailto:jimb@yatesholdings.com]
Sent: Wednesday, September 03, 2014 11:24 AM
To: grace@stratanm.com
- Subject: update

Got your message.... Was out of office for a few days and am covered up. It will be hard if not impossible to tease this
without a better royalty. | will get back with you. What would the offer be if it was a % royalty?

Jim Ball
Landman

Yates Holdings LLP

.Box 1394
wesia, Nivi 88211-1394
Direct Phone: (575) 736-8572



Main Phone: (575) 736-8575
Fax: (575) 736-8577
Email: jimb@vyatesholdings.com

his message may contain confidential information and is intended for the named recipient only. If you are not the
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

From: Jim Ball [jimb@yates‘holdingsicom]
&ent: Tuesday, September 23, 2014 3:31 PM

To: grace@stratanm.com

Subject: Notary of Yates Brothers

Attachments: image001.png; 20140923153220498.pdf

Jim Ball

Landman

THS

OLDINGS

—s

Yates Holdings LLP

P. O.Box 1394

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

f this information is strictly prohibited. E-mail transmission cannot be guaranteed to be secure or error-free as
information could be intercepted, corrupted, lost, destroyed, arrive late or incomplete, or contain viruses. The sender
therefore does not accept liability for any errors or omissions in the contents of this message, which arise as a result of
e-mail transmission. If verification is required please request a hard-copy version.



STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
COUNTY OF EDDY )

This instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of , 2013, by
John A. Yates, Jr., Manager of Yates Private Equity Il LLP, a New Mcxico limited liability
partnership, in its capacily as general partner of Yates Brothers, a New Mexico general
partnership, on behalf of said partnership.

My commission expires:

Notary Public




Grace Charboneau

rom: Jim Ball [imb@yatesholdings.com}
ent: Tuesday, September 23, 2014 3:40 PM
To: grace@stratanm.com
Subject: RE: Revised Lease
Attachments: image001.png
If | remember correctly............ you indicated that the lease had been ratified but you never could find that it was

recorded.... The ratification that is. Also do | have a copy (submitted by you previously) of the OGL that was
supposedly/apparently ratified? If not can you sent it to me. If previously sent by email just tell me and 1 will find it. Not
need to send twice. Thanks.

Jim Ball
Landman

NATES

LDINGS

Yates Holdings LLP

P.0O.Box 1394

Artesia, NM 88211-1394

Direct Phone: (575) 736-8572

Main Phone: (575) 736-8575

Fax: (575) 736-8577
.Email: jimb@yatesholdings.com

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
Sent: Tuesday, September 23, 2014 3:37 PM -

To: Jim Ball'

Subject: Revised Lease

Mr. Jim,
Attached is the revised lease with the correct notary block information. Please let me know if there is anything that |
can do to help.

As | mentioned before, the amount that we are currently paying is 1/6 royalty with a $25.00 per net mineral acre for the
Stoltenberg leases.

| believe the force pooling hearing date is set for October 30th.

Qlease let me know if you have any questions.
ave a super day.



Grace Charboneau
Division Order Analyst

*overelgn Exploration Company, L.L.C.
P.O. Box 968
Roswell, NM 88202
(575) 622-1127 Ext. 20



PRODUCERS 88-PAID UP
Revised

: OIL AND GAS LEASE
THIS LEASE AGREEMENT is made as of the 21th day of August 2014.between Yates Brothers, a Partnership, whose address is

PO Box 1394, Artesia, NM_ 88211 as Lessor (whether one or more), and Sovereign Exploration Company, LEC, whose address is
P.O. Box 968, Roswell, NM 88202, as Lessee. All printed portions of this lease were prepared by the party hereinabove named as

Lessee, but all other provisions (including the completion of blank spaces) were prepared jointly by Lessor and Lessee.

I.  Grant of Leased Premises. In consideration of a cash bonus in hand paid and the covenants herein contained, Lessor hereby
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
and by-products, and non-hydrocarbon substances produced in association therewith (“Oit and Gas Substances”). This lease also
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
water and/or other substances produced on the Leased Premises, except water from Lessor’s wells or ponds, and the royalty shail be
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

a) grants a mineral permit for entry, exit, egress for all exploration and driiling purposes, including but not limited to surface
seismic data acquisition, cross- well seismic data acquisition, well logging and data acquisition, airborne, gravity and/or other
remote sensing data acquisition for the term of the lease; and

- b) to the extent Lessor owns or controls surface rights, grants a surface permit for entry, exit, egress for all exploration and
drilling purposes, including but ~ not limited to surface seismic data acquisition, cross-well seismic data acquisition, well logging
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

4  Term of Lease. This lease shall be in force for a primary term of five (5) vears from the date hereof, and for as long thereafter as
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
only action required by Lessee to exercise this option being the payment to Lessor {(delivered by certified mail to the address
hereinabove identified for Lessor) of the additional consideration of the sum equal to that paid for primary term, which payment shall
cover the five (5) year term extension. If this lease is extended as to only a portion of the acreage then covered hereby, Lessee shall
designate such portion by a recordable instrument and the additional consideration shall be proportionately reduced.



S. Operations. If Lessee drills a well which Lessee determines is uneconomic (hereinafier called “dry hole”) on the Leased
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
of all production. If after the primary term this lease is not otherwise being maintained in force, but Lessec is then engaged in
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
conducted on or off the Leased Premises that is reasonably calcutaled to obtain or restore production, including without limitation,
(i) drilling or any act preparatory to drilling (such as obtaining permits, surveying a drill site, staking a drill site, building roads,
clearing a drill site, or hauling equipment or supplies}; (ii) reworking, hydraulic fracturing, plugging back, deepening, treating, testing,
stimulating, refitting, installing any artificial lift or production-enhancement equipment or technique; (iii) constructing facilities
related to the production, treatment, transportation and marketing of substances produced from the lease premises; (iv) contracting for
marketing services and sale of Qil and Gas Substances; and (v) construction of water disposal facilities and the physical movement of
water produced from the Leased Premises.

6.  Shut-in Royalty. If at any time when this lease is not validated by other provisions hereof and there is a gas and/or oil well on
said land, or land pooled therewith, but gas or oil is not being so sold or used and such well is shut in, either before or after production

. therefrom, then on or before 180 days after said well is shut in, and thereafter at annual intervals, lessee may pay or tender an advance
shut-in royalty equal to $1.00 per net acre of lessor's gas acreage then held under this lease by the party making such payment or
tender, and so long as said shut-in royalty is paid or tendered, this lease shall not terminate and it shall be considered under all clauses
hereof that gas is being produced from the leased premises in paying quantities. Each such payment shall be paid or tendered (o the
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
conditions as are customary in the industry. "Price” shall mean the net amount received by lessee afler giving effect to applicable
regulatory orders and after application of any applicable price adjustments specified in such contract or regulatory orders. Lessee’s
failure to properly pay shut-in royalty shall render Lessee liable for the amount due, but shall not operate to terminate this lease.

7.  Royalty Payment. For all Oil and Gas Substances that are physically produced from the Leased Premises, or lands pooled,
unitized or communitized therewith, and sold, lessor shall receive as its royalty one-sixth _(1/6th) of the sales proceeds actually
received by Lessee or, if applicable, its affiliate, as a result of the first sale of the affected production to an unaffiliated party, less this
same percentage share of all Post Production Costs and this same percentage share of all production, severance and ad valorem taxes.
As used in this provision, Post Production Costs shall mean all costs actually incurred by Lessee or its affiliate and all losses of
produced volumes whether by use as fuel, line loss, flaring, venting or otherwise from and after the welihead to the point of sale,
These costs include without limitation, all costs of gathering, marketing, compression, dehydration, transportation, removal of liquid
or gaseous substances .or impurities from the affected production, and any other treatment or processing required by the first
unaffiliated party who purchases the affected production. For royalty calculation purposes, Lessee shall never be required to adjust
the sales proceeds to account for the purchaser’s costs or charges downstream of the point of sale.

Lessee or its affiliate shall have the right to construct, maintain and operate any facilities providing some or all of the services

. identified as Post Production Costs. Lf this occurs, the actual costs of such facilities shall be included in the Post Production Costs as a

per barrel or per mef charge, as appropriate, calculated by spreading the construction, maintenance and operating costs for such
facilities over the reasonably estimated total production volumes attributable to the well or wells using such facilities.

Lessee shall have free use of Oil and Gas Substances to assist in producing or enhancing production of Oil and Gas Substances and
Lessor’s royalty shall be computed after deducting any Oil and Gas Substances so used. If Lessee uses the Oil and Gas Substances
(other than (o assist in producing or enhancing production of Oil and Gas Substances or as fuel in connection with the production and
sale thereof) in lieu of receiving sale proceeds, the price to be used under this provision shall be based upon arm's-length sale(s) to
unaffiliated parties for the applicable month that are obtainable, comparable in terms of quality and quantity, and in closest proximiry
to the Leased Premises. Such comparable arm's-length sales price shail be less any Post Production Costs applicable to the specific

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
.with respect to such other land, lease or leases. Likewise, units previously formed to include formations not producing oil or gas, may
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
shall be treated as if it were production, drilling or reworking operations or a well shut in for want of market under this lease. In lieu
of the royalties elsewhere herein specified, including shut-in gas royalties, Lessor shall receive on production from the unit so pooled
royalties only on the portion of such production that the total number of surface acres covered by this lease and included in the unit
bears to the total number of surface acres in such unit. In addition to the forcgoing, Lessee shall have the right but not the obligation
to unitize, pool, or combine all or any part of the above described lands or interest therein as to one or more of the formations
thereunder with other lands in the same general area by entering in one or more cooperative or unit plan of development(s) or
operation (approved by any governmental authority, if required by law) and, from time to time, with like approval if required by law,
to modify, change or terminate any such pian or agreement. In such event, the terms, conditions, and provisions of this lease shall be
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
under any such cooperative or unit plan of development or operation whereby the production therefrom is atlocated to different
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

9.  Payment Reductions. If Lessor owns less than the full mineral estate in all or any part of the Leased Premises, payment of
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

10. Ownership Changes. The interest of either Lessor or Lessee hereunder may be assigned, devised or otherwise transferred in
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
order. In the event of the death of any person entitled to shut-in royalties hereunder, Lessee may pay or tender such shut-in royaltics to
the credit of decedent or decedent’s estate. If at any time two or more persons are entitled to shut-in royaities hereunder, Lessee may
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

11.  Release of Lease. Lessee may, at any time and from time to time, deliver to Lessor or file of record a written release of this
lease as to a full or undivided interest in all or any portion of the area covered by this lease or any depths or zones thereunder, and
shall thereupon be relieved of all obligations thereafter arising with respect to the interest so released. If Lessee releases less than all of
the interest or area covered hereby, Lessee’s obligation to pay or tender shut-in royalnes shall be proportionately reduced in
accordance with the net acreage interest retained hereunder,

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
prevention or delay shall be added to the term hereof. Lessee shalt not be liable for breach of any provisions or implied covenants of
this lease when drilling, production or other operations are so prevented or delayed.

13.  Breach or Default. No litigation shall be initiated by Lessor for damages, forfeiture or cancellation with respect to any breach
or default by Lessee hereunder, for a period of at least 90 days after Lessor has given Lessee written notice fuliy describing the breach
or default, and then oniy if Lesses fails to remedy the breach cr default within such period. In the event the matter is litigated and there
is a final judicial determination that a breach or default has occurred, this lease shall not be forfeited or cancelled in whole or in part
unless Lessee is given a reasonable time after said judicial determination to remedy the breach or default and Lessee fails to do so.

14. Title. Lessor hereby warrants and agrees to defend title conveyed to Lessee hereunder, and agrees that Lessee at Lessee’s
option may pay and discharge any taxes, mortgages or liens existing, levied or assessed on or against the Leased Premises, If Lessee
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
Yates Brothers
By: Yates Private Equity II LLP, Partner

By:

John A. Yates, Jr.

Title: Manager

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

NOTE: .
The following short form certificate of notarial acts are sufficient for the purpose indicated, if completed with the

information required by subsection A of Section 7 (14-14-17 NMSA) of the Uniform Law on Notarial Acts. The validity and effect
of these forms in any state will depend upon the statutes of the state.

Acknowledgment in a Representative Capacity

. STATE OF )

)§ ss.
COUNTY OF )

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this day of , 2014, by John A. Yates, Jr., Manager of
Yates Private Equity Il LLP, a New Mexico limited liability partnership, in its capacity as general partner of Yates Brothers, a New

Mexico general partnership, on behalf of said partnership.

Notary Public in and for the State of

My Commission Expires: (Seal, if any)
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Grace Charboneau:

rom: Grace Charboneau [gcharboneau@stratanm.com]
ent: , Wednesday, September 24, 2014 9:26 AM
o: 'Jim Ball'

Attachments: - Chevron Texaco Lease.pdf

Mr. Jim,

This is the information that | previously sent to you. 1 think that both of these documents might be helpful to you.
Please let me know if there is something else that you need.
Thank you so much for.taking the time to work on it.

‘Grace Charboneau
Division Order Analyst

Sovereign Exploration Company, L.L.C.
P.O. Box 968 ;
Roswell, NM 88202

(575) 622-1127 Ext. 20

From: Grace Charboneau [mailto:gcharboneau@stratanm.com]
Sent: Friday, August 22, 2014 11:25 AM
To: 'Jim Ball' )

‘ubject: Chevron Texaco Lease, Minerat Deed

Mr. Jim, .
Sorry it has taken me so long to get this to you this morning. Attached is the original Chevron Texaco Lease that was
never ratified. Also is a copy of the mineral deed where it went from Chevron Texaco to Yates Petroleum. This was
recorded in Book 115 page 578. However, in our title history print out that we received from Graham Title, there is
another mineral deed that was recorded in book 116 page 263 that is going from Yates Petroleum to Yates Brothers.

_Unfortunately, | do not have a copy of this one, but you might be able to call the clerk's office and get a copy of it. Sorry
| didn't have all of the pieces but, it is a place to start. Please let me know if you have any further questions.

Thank you for your help. Have a great day.

Grace Charboneau
Division Order Analyst

Sovereign Exploration Company, L.L.C. Y

P.0. Box 968
Roswell, NM 88202
(575) 622-1127 Ext. 20



Grace Charboneau

rom: Grace Charboneau [gcharboneau@stratanm.com]
‘ent: Tuesday, September 23, 2014 4:07 PM
o: "Jim Ball'
Subject: FW: Chevron Texaco Lease, Mineral Deed
Attachments: Chevron Texaco Lease.pdf; Mineral Deed from Chevron to Yates Pet - Book 115 Page
578.pdf
Mr. Jim, .

This is the information that | previously sent to you. | think that both of these documents might be helpful to you.
Please et me know if there is something else that you need.
Thank you so much for taking the time to work on it.

Grace Charboneau
Division Order Analyst

Sovereign Exploration Company, L.L.C.
P.O. Box 968

Roswell, NM 88202

(575) 622-1127 Ext. 20

fmw mmew e e = e e A M e e sy e — [

‘rom: Grace Charboneau [mailto:gcharboneau@stratanm.com]
ent: Friday, August 22, 2014 11:25 AM

fo: 'Jim Ball'

Subject: Chevron Texaco Lease, Mineral Deed

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
Unfortunately, | do not have a copy of this one, but you might be able to call the clerk's office and get a copy of it. Sorry
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
‘Roswell, NM 88202
(575) 622-1127 Ext. 20



"', between TEXACO PRODUCING INC., whose -mailing address 1s' P.O..
Colorado 80201,  hereinafter called “Léssor,” -and MARSHALL PIPE. & SUPPLY

preduction or the market value thereof, at- +the option ‘of Lessor

-

"‘:.:‘_I'r("l'\( )
_"STATE OF NEW MEXICO® [ xnow ALL HEN BY. THESE_ PRESENTS THAT
_ COUNTY - OF ROO'SVEVEL'.I" [ SR

made and entered {nto “this 27th " day of May, 1986 by and

This agrecment
Box 2100, Penver,

COMPANY, whose mailing uddress ls 13423 Fotest Uay Drive,. Dallas, Texas 752&0 o
herelnafter called “"Lecsee,"” . R .

y . " i
. I.:
Lessor, in consideration of Ten. Dollars ($10 00). or more’, in hand’ pald cof -

the royalties herein provided,:and of the- agreements of Lesseé Kerein contaiped,
hereby . GRANTS, LEASES, and LETS unto Lessee .for " the purpose of invescigattng,

" prospecting, drilling for, -and producing oil and. gas, laying pipe lines ‘and

building structures thereon’.to produce, save, take care of, treat. transport,

- arid’ store ‘said’ products, the following, described land .in Roosevelt Councy, New' N
o Hexico hereinafter referred to as the “leased premises.“ to wit : o ‘

-The Southwest. One- qunrter (Sw/é) of Section 23 the East One- half (E/Z) and
the Northwest One- quarter (NU/&) of Sectlon 26} and all of Seccion 27

T-2:5, R-29-E. .
' ".u'."'

Subject to’ the other provlsions ‘heréof, thiw lease shall be - for a térm of}
three .(3) years from the date hereof, herainafter referred to as "primary term,

.and as long thereaftar as oil or gas is produced in paying quantities or any

operation herein provided is conducted or -any -condltion exists which as heroin”
provided continues this lcase. Notwithstanding nnyching kerein to the concrnry..
‘this lcase is’'a fully paid up-lease for the primiry torm stated above "and. may
not be terminated by 1imitations upon, .or- abandonment . of the property }ntereqt o
herein. grnnted ‘during said primary term, : Do .

111. '
-A. - The royaltles ‘to be paid Lessor. are ! j“

. 1. on oil, includtng condensnte, distillate. .and all hydrocarbons
produced in a liquid form .at the mouth of the well or: recovered from oil or- gas’
run through a separator or other.: gqulpment. one f1feh. (1/5). ‘of the gross

2. . On ‘gas,” ineluding casinghead gas, flured gas or pas’ used in lease ..'}

: -opcfatlons. and any other pgaseous substances, onme fifth (1/5) of the gross e

production’ or the. market value thereof, at ‘the- optlon of Lessor, except as

. provlded hcre(nbelow

3. On gns proeoqaad 10 a plnnt for the rocovory of gnnoline or othox

- 1{quid hydrocarbons, one- fifth (1/5) of . tha- redidue .gas. and tho liquid o

hydrocarbons extracted’ or the' market valuo théreof, - at thoe optien of’ Lossor.
All royaltles duc on ‘processed gas and gas ltquids shull be . based on ‘one hundred
percent (100%). of the total plant production of residue gas atCributable to gns’
produced from this lease, .and on fifty percént (50%) or that percent -accruing to
lessée, .. whichever 1is greater,. .of -the total -plant. productlon of - -1iquid
hydrocarbons attributable to” the gas produced from this” lease; .provided that {f .-
liquid hydrocarbons are recovered from gas processed in"a plant in which Lesseo

" (or its parent, subsidiary .or affiliate) ‘owns an’ interest then the- percencage.

applicable to 1liquid hydrocarbons shall be- fifty percent (50%) "or the highest.
percent accruinp to .a third parcy. procansing gas’ c‘hrough euch- plant under a,
pracessing agreement negoclatod at’ arms"length (or if :here is no .such’ chird
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parey, the highaac parcant “then being lpeciflad in processlng agteements or
contracts in tha industty) vhichevar is greater. - .

. 4, " Proceeds from any aale between Lessee and any nen- afflliated
‘ company of person negotiated in good faith and at arms’ length ahall ba deamed
to be markot value for tha purposes ‘of thia Arctcle IlI

B Laaaor may. at any time or from time’ to time. require that tha payment : o
of any or all -of the above resarved royalties bo- mado in kind upon alxty (60) -

‘days written notice. Any gas contract oxecuted by Lessee shall provide ‘that

upon ‘sixty (60) days written notico .of Lessor's f{ntention to take its royalty

‘i'gas 1in kind auch royalty gas ‘shall bé relaasad ftom cha contract,

€. _Lessor's royalty, including’ that paid tn kind ia to be frec and clear

of all .exploring, -producing, developing, processing, marketing -and transporting

‘costs (except. ak allowed under. Paragraph I11.A.3 above) as well as all clalms,
_chargos, exponses, .taxes, overriding royalties, and othor royalties, providud,
however, thatLessor's. royalty shall bear’ (1) lts proportionnra part of all ad

- “valoram, -soverance, gross production,- gathoring.. windfall profits and ‘othur,

. similar taxes levied on or measured by production from the leased premises and

(2) any exiatlng non- pnrciclputing royalty interest’ herntofore reserved by Texas.

~. Pactfle Land Trusc appllcnble to the leased premtses
_31\1.

AL Lessee wlll select a. legnl location for any wall as a reasonable,
R prudent operator and {n a manner-which will allow the maximum number of wells on

‘the leased premises under- applicable governmental .spacing and proration rules so

that- the "leased premises can bé -fully developed whether' by Lessee ob by any
other -party who may obcain rights to develop the’ leased premises including

L Texacq: Producing Inc.

. B.- -1f at the end of the. primary cerm production of oil or gas has been
"obtained ‘on the leased premises, -Lessee- shall thereafter continuously develop
the loased premises’ with no cessation of over ore hundred twenty (120)

consecutive days. from the c0mp1et£on ‘of one well,’ eichor as a well capable of

producing-ofl or gas in paying quuntities -ar as.a dry hola.,and the commencement
“nof actual- drilling operations on: the.next well and with no cessation of ‘actual

dr{lling ‘en’ any well for .over. thirty (30). consecutive days. Where no.drilling .~

.operations are boing conducted on the leased premises at the end of the primavy
-term .(production pxeviously having -been- obtained) the first auch contimious
development. well shall be actually commenced within one hundred twenty (120)
days of the end of the primaty teYm, If howevet, at the eénd of the primary
‘term no' oil.'6r gas 1is being produced on the leased premises, but Lessee 'is then
engaged- in drilling operations thereon, -this lease shall not terminate so long
as drilling operations’ are.continuously prosecuted with 'no cessation of ‘over
'thirry (30) consecutive.days, and thereafter. so long as ail-and gas 1is produced

in “paying quantities ot said leased premises ‘are continuously developcd ~as

) provided above

) C.cC. . At the end of the. primary term or: upon ‘the cessntion of the continuous -
" . development of .the lensed premises required above, whichever 1is later, this

“lease shall. terminate as to all lands and depths. covered herein, excépt as-to
those ‘lands and depths locatod within a gov«rnmvntal proration ‘unit. asslgned to

7.4 'well producing ofl or gas: in -paying quantictlos. Within ‘satd producing

.. governmental proratlon unica. this: leéase ‘shall also terminate at such cime to
- those .depths located éither (1) one hundred (100). feet below the - total depth

drilled, or (2) below base of "the deepest producing formation in such .

goVarnmancnl proration unit, whlchaver ia the lessaer.

D.,. The term. “governmental proracion unit" as used herein is defined to
.. mean the amount of acreage. assigried each well for spacing and.proration purposes .
by the New Mexico 0il Conservation Commiss fon pursuant to special field rules

for the field in which that well is located. 1n the event special fleld rules

. applicable to a well drilled heréunder have not.been adopted "governmentai. N
proration unit® shall ‘be 'deemed .to consist of forty (40) acres ! No change in'
the amount of acreage assigned to a well for spacing and proration purposes by

the New Mexico OLl. Conservation Commission which {s adopted ‘more than two {2)

. yeors ‘after tha completion of such well shall anlarga or reduca the amount of‘

K dil and: Gas ﬂLaa.sa :
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pursuant to paragraph XII below.

-,

. acreage held by such well in a “goberhmcncai:ptbrnniép~un1c"*qndnr”che'fgrms-of

this loase.. For each well producing oil or pas.in paying quiantities; Lassca

description -attached ‘to its.Application for “Permit to Drill, "Plug BRack -or
Re-complete (Form C-101), filed with the New.uqxlcp.OII_COﬁservacion Commissfon,
and such cevtified plat ar legal description shall determine the location of the
acreage centained in each "goveérnmental proration unit” for.the -purpases of  thia
lease, L K o RS L e
' * : o .

R at the end of the prgmuryytekﬁfoé.dhy-tfme thefaétiér“Le;sea has’

- ‘obtained production of pil or gag in paying quantities from the ledsed premizes,

and in:the event. such production should cease on-a governmental proration- unit

" from -any cause, thié lease 'shall. terminate as to.that gaverpmental provation
" unit unless Lessee, within' sixty- (60) days after such .cessatiopn,. reatores
production or commences additional drilling "ot 'réworking operations an aaid: .

goveramental proration. unit (whether in the came or & diffevent well) and this

141

‘shall.provide Lessor with a copy of the certiffed plat (Form: €-102) ‘or legal .

lease shall remain in full force and effect as’ ta. that govérnmentalﬂproration~:-"

‘unit for so long 4s_ any such.opcratjoﬁs.arp'continudusly-proaqcutdd. with: no
cessation of ever thivty (30) -consecutive daya, or .01l or gas, .is produced {n -

paying quantities, -This paragraph will not be effective during ‘any Pperiod 'in

- which continuous dovelopment operations. are being conducted heraunder. ..

v,

Notwithstanding tbe,automatic'revérttﬁg-and.révesgihg‘éf title. into }aﬁsof,
upan the happening of the avents as herein pravided, Lessee shall promptly make,

"execute and deliver to Lesgor any ‘{natrument or {natruments reassigning and "

. yeconveying tha record title
“agrees and all persons ave hereby -given ‘notice that, .upon the termination of

to Lessor, ‘asm and whon requestsd. , lossec hereby

this lease . (with or without an {nstrument  'of velease, . Fpassignment o,

reconveyanice) Lessor's -intevest {n the leased prerisps shall be free and ‘clear
of ‘any overriding ‘Toyalty, payment out of praductian, uet profit -obligation .or.'-

carried interest, or any obligation ta -whioh 1t may: have been subjected by

logsee. Any such obligations shall cease and . tarmingto ' and .ba..of no furthet

force 'and effect as .to such part. Of the leassd premives ‘reassighod of
reconveyed, notwithstanding that Lessor may’ have expressly or inpliedly

. consented to the assigament or the {instrument ~‘in Wwhich -such’ obligatioh was.'
reserved or created. o o B S . ‘

o,

A.. Lessee shall have the right -at anx'tiﬁé_untillsi% (6) months ‘after. the

expiration of this lease to remove all property-and fixtures placed by lessee on."
‘the leased premises, - including the Tight ceo draw.’ and..remove all casing;

provided, however, this paragraph - shall not -apply to &, lease tégminat{onn'\“l;'

B. _Lessee ‘agrees- ca..fuliy, defend,

damage, or loss including court costs and attoyney's fees,. that may be asserted

“ggalnst "Lessor or lLessese’ by -any third. party, including Lessee’'s employes..and
agents, asrising from or on dccount of any operations conducted. by, Lessee ar for
. the benefit of Lesseé on the leased premises. .. 0 . O

€. Lesses shall plug any‘vell.eithér not capabla or ﬂotlbhgar.capabla af

. producing oil .or gas in paying quantities and ®hall restore the leased. premisos
_around any ‘such'well to the satisfection of’ Laasor, In the event Lessee faila
“to plug any such well or fafls to roatore -such surface around'&ny such wail to
""the satisfaction of Lessor, then Lessor, at its option, may plug any such® well

'and restore such surface’ around any. such well to.lts. satiafoction, and Lessés -
shall relmburse: {t fof any and all. sums of méney ‘expended in ‘connection -

therewith, Lessee shall comply with.all statutary requirements and goverrmental
rules and regulations in effect at the time of plugging any .well not taken over,,

,,Oik:snd Gas lease
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" hereunder.

-

. i .- .

residence ur barn qow on.tha'ldiaad'premlsca wixhoup.Lepadn‘u consent,

E. .. lesaes ahéif'habe“iho right ‘to frew use of all water on the 1eéséd5t
: all operations. .

premises to which Lessor may have the’ right ‘to use or take for

h

P LT U S : ., . A

F. lassee .ag¥ees to operate the leased premises as a reasonably prudent
operator -.would under the same- or similar cifcumstances and to protect the leased’
- nearby ’

premises from drainage. by reason of any vell- completed on adjacent or
lands. . . o S . . L
- G: Lessee 'shall 'in - the. drilling of . all '».wellz‘g. .hereuti'dgr-'tést ‘a1l
formations leased hereunder having an adequate show vf oil or gas, ‘or.which for
any, other reason would indicate o a prudent operator that such formation (or

" formations) should be tested. - ..

* H, ,l;ea'se('aU shall.allow Lessor and its féptesantatives ‘full sccess to all

wolla .drilled’ hereunder, including ~access to the records thereof and .to the
derrick floor, at Lesigt“l_noléxtiskﬁand_sxponsa.'and tegsar shall be Ffurnished

with samples or coples of all cores, cuttings/ logs, drilling dats, testirg and
complating data, “and all other tnformation obtaihed by Lessee, perteining. to any

~ wall drilled hereunder. .‘Commencing with thé month following the completion of -
" the Fitst producing- well drilled hereunder, Lesses shall furnfsh Llessor a '

. atatement’ on. ot before' the 20th of ‘each month thereafter showing all wells

'drilled or being drilled ‘pursuant to’ the .terms hereof, the status of all such

wells and current production tnformation for all producing wells including but
not limited to volumes, values and purchases, : : .

1. Until f’\ircher. "-n:oti'.cei_.l,;ss.éé “"shall. furnish all .informt;'ttqn . under '
"paragraph VI.H. above, a9 follows: .~ - " . . -~ o

o ézﬁ' Desfgnee: - _
Me.'P. B. Highsmith = ‘Melephone . -
Texaco Producing Inc,' t. . Officer (303) 793-4613

F.0. Box 2100 - " Home:. (303) 791-0746 | . -
" Denver;, Colorado 80201 " -:. . ° - - .- .7 -

. .Mr. D E. Ryan ', . - . Telephone -
. Texado Producing Ine,. .’ - Officei (303) 793:4610 .
» . 'P.0. Box 2100 © . Home: . " {303) 699-2548
" Denver, Colorado 80201: '~ S .

' 1. _' {fqti,c‘a .by. ‘telephone of .all- ﬁrupoged-'_cérfng.' drillstem ;es;tiﬁg.
- and logging in suffictent time for Texaco. Producing Inc, to have
" a representative ‘presont. . ’ : PR '

- .2."..,'Dall'y 'ropoft". .by‘ té_l.e_phonel of " well. stt.a't'us"and .'sl'gnfg.icant -
evelopments from sgpudding date until well 1is completed .and *

pote n‘g faled.

3 A daily cqp'y."of.lény"mddl log if a m&d'~].ogging uni't'j is uélé,d. .’ o

A one fleld 'pri'i\c or 'greli':hlq'.a'y,—yprihc ~and'. one fir{al ‘print‘. of all .

“legs run. . . .

5 Samples of .any. “and _ali ‘éq.re;:, 1E. r'e.quest’ed'..

"6, - At 'the. time the well 1s to. be:-spudded, your, geologist in charge.
" Of, the well -will contact the above Designee or Alternate. The

* purposeé -of - this'’ contact . will “be to discuss any .potential
,mo:}ific’atiﬁn of the requirements under this paragraph. and the

. necessary time requirements for notification of coring; logging..

. . testing, etc, -This contact will also serve as a mutual exchange’

R " 01l and Gaa La_‘asei o
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of names.snd phone numpers“of.the
for both you{a.nd Texacod

"y pexiensst

pe. Joe King .
Texaco producing Inc.
0. Box 728 '

. H;bbs‘ New ﬂexiéo 88240 )

1. Natice of lécac(on.'-
9., Weekly report' b matl
from spudding dave ub

. 3. One fleld 'print oF prelimin&;y'bfint

“1ogs, ¢OVe snalysef.
‘61014 sdit aipiral &

T Complete details oi.all?ﬁrillstzm_toatn_takén;:tvgethe;.wltu-cqu L
iubothguhu}e«homb*. o e ST

of charts
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1X. |

L T laasor ‘ressrves and 1- hereby givon the right at any time and from
© " time to.tima to ‘purchase or dc-tgnate a ‘purchaser for all of. Lessee's oll and
. othexr’ liquid’ hydrocarbona. produced and saved from the leassd premises. Losgor's
election to purchaae said oll or other liquid hydrocarbons shall be given to
Losaea {n writing at lesst’ thirey’ (30) days prior to rho time. purchasea shall

" begin, ‘and notlice of discontinuance of putchage shall be given in a like manner,
The -aption glven hareby shall apply separately as to oil and' as to other liquid
_Ihydrocarbons and Lessot may. purchase the oil or any liquid hydrocarbon, or any
“one or ‘more of them, without- purchasing the remaining productn. Tho price paid

Lossee by Lessor shall be the current: market price at the wells for such'\:

production ‘of ‘1ike klnd and quality

X.

Subject to the gther terms hereof in the event Lessee completes a well
capablé, of- producing .gas in _paying: quantities (whether during or after the '

expiration of the primary carm)
- the lack of an available market,

but gas.is not béing used or sold because of-

then this lease shall not terminate as’ to the

_government proration unit ‘around such shut-in well capable of production for. one
(1) period of .two (2) years, either from the date sald -gas well!ls shut-in or
the. .expiration of the primary. term, whichever is the later date, and as long

‘ thereafter as oil or gas is: produced in paying quantities arid marketed from such’

; governmencal proration unit,

XL

In the .event any sction in law or equity,- Including . any action for
déclaratory ‘relfef, is: brought by Lessor or Lessee to enforce or interpret any
- provision of this .lease, . the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its™
reasonable attorney's -fees, court-costs and other costs incurred therein, .which’

‘fees  may be set by the court in’ the trial of such action or may be enforced in a

- separate actfon for. that’ purpose;’ and which fees shall be in, addltion to any

other reltef which may be, awarded .

XII. -

I; Lessor owns less than the entire fee or mineral estate in the leased

premises, then- &1l interests reserved to Lessor under the terms of this leasa,

Jincluding - Lessor's -royalty and call on production. shall be reduced_

proportionately. -

XIII

cIt-ig- undorstood and agreed that time is of the essenca in the performanco.

S of this agreement

IN NITNESS HHEREOF, thts'lqatrumant i$'bxecqtedvéo be .effoctive ns of the

. '*dpto first above wricten, - o
R L A LESSOR' —
’Apﬁroved as:to:. . . . CO PRO
.. .Desc. & Data p{/ - C .
.. Terms = . P By g
o SR A:torney ”QFM':

S LESSEE;.

"MA-.HALL PPE’ s SUPPLY COHPANY
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STATE OF COLORADO ) '
Co T Lo )
-1 CITY-AND COUNTY.OF DENVER ) ‘
This Instrument vas acknowledged before me on £t day of _Tuwle e
1986, by 2 P LowaHRsy : ", Attorney-in-Fact of: TEXACO PRODUCINC~[' Co
INC . a Delaware cnrporation .on behalf of naid corporaclon = R R
Y . - - - . e b . ."'.. s [
B ,' . ‘, . . . . ' e
c ] ) o
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This instrument vas acknowledged ors, me on the _Eti;‘day L
ot S by o ol hf_é bAU__________;h-‘_-
’ ~<,-_jh ? _______________ ©oof - Harshnll Pipe & Supply Company Y
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»cor.poration. "
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MINERAL DEED
STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
}
COUNTY OFROOSEVELT -~}

THIS AGREEMENT, entered into this 2ist day of _November  , 2003, by and between
CHEVRON U.S.A. INC., a Pennsylvania corporation, whose mailing address is 1111 Bagby,

Houston, Texas 77002 (hereinafter referred to as "Grantor”) and

Yates Petroleum Carporation , whose mailing address’
is 105 South Fourth Street, Artesia, NM 83210 - (hereinafter referred to
as "Grantee"),

DOES WITNESS THAT:

. In consideration of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable consideration, the
receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, and of the performance by Grantee of the
covenants, agreements, obligations and conditions hereinafter contained, to be kept and performed
by Grantee, 1t is agreed between the parties as follows, to-wit:

I. Convevance. Grantor does hereby grant, bargain, Sell, convey and quitclaim to
Grantee, without warranty express or implied, all of Grantor's right, title and interest
in the oil, gas and other minerals (including but not limited to royalties, overriding
royalties, working interests, reversionary interests, or any contractual obligations or
interests created pursuant to any Joint Operating Agreement/s) in, under or that may
be produced and saved from the property(ies) listed on Exhibit “A” attached hereto
and made a part hereof, insofar-and only insofar as limited herein (hereinafter referred
to as the “Property”), and subject to all of the covenants and conditions hereof and the
additional provisions, if any, contained in said Exhibit “A”.

2. No Warranty or Representation by Grantor. This conveyance is made on an "AS
1S, WHERE IS" basis and "WITH ALL FAULTS", and WITHOUT WARRANTIES
WHATSOEVER WITH RESPECT TO ANY INTEREST HEREIN
TRANSFERRED, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, it being expressly agreed by

1

},_r'»
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Grantor and Grantee that GRANTOR MAKES NO WARRANTIES OR
REPRESENTATIONS WITH RESPECT TO ORIGIN, QUANTITY, QUALITY,
CONDITION, MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR
PURPOSE, SAFETY OF EQUIPMENT, COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAL
REGULATIONS, TITLE TO PERSONAL PROPERTY, TITLE TO REAL
PROPERTY, THE QUANTITY, VALUE OR EXISTENCE OF RESERVES OF OIL,
GAS OR OTHER MINERALS PRODUCIBLE OR RECOVERABLE FROM THE
PROPERTY, OR OF TITLE TO OR CONDITION OF THE PROPERTY. All
descriptions set forth herein and all information heretofore or hereafter furnished
" Grantee by Grantor concerning the Property have been and shall be furmnished solely
for Grantee’s convenience and have not constituted and shall not constitute a
representation or warranty of any kind by Grantor, and any rehance thereupon by
Grantee shall be at Grantee’s sole risk and liability. Grantee understands and
. acknowledges that (i) the Property is or may have been used for the production,
storage and transportation of oil and/or gas, including, without limitation, the handling
and the storage of naturally occurring radioactive material (NORM); (i1) the Property
may contain an abandoned o1l well and other oilfield equipment, including abandoned
well casing, storage facilities, pipelines, and buried pipe; (iit) the condition and
whereabouts of such equipment is unknown and all of which equipment has not been
excepted and excluded from this conveyance; and (iv) Grantee must comply with all
laws and regulations affecting its planned activities on the Property.

Grantee’s Indemnity of Grantor. Grantee agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and
hold Grantor harmless from and against any and ail liability (including, but not limited
to, liability for environmental contamination or damage under CERCLA, RCRA,
CWA, CAA and all other federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations,
as well as all acts, laws and regulations amendatory or supplementary thereto), loss,
damage, injury, claims, demands and causes of action therefor asserted or filed after
the effective date hereof in any way relating to the Property and the contracts ard
agreements appertaining thereto, REGARDLESS OF THE SOLE, JOINT OR
CONCURRENT _NEGLIGENCE, - STRICT LIABILITY, REGULATORY
LIABILITY, STATUTORY LIABILITY, OR__OTHER_ FAULT OR
RESPONSIBILITY OF GRANTOR OR ANY OTHER PERSON OR PARTY.
Grantee shall observe and comply with all covenants, terms, and provisions, express
or implied, contained in the agreements, leases, easements and all other contracts
appertaining to Grantor's interest in the Property and this Deed is made expressly
subject to all such agreements, leases, easements, contracts and other matters.

Taxes. Any taxes, including but not limited to ad valorem, property, and
severance taxes, that may be payable on the Property shall be prorated between
Grantor and Grantee as of the effective date hereof, with Grantor responsible for all
such-taxes accruing prior thereto, and Grantee responsible for all such taxes accruing
thereafter. Grantor shall reimburse Grantee for Grantor’s share of ad valorem laxes
which are due on oil or gas produced prior to the effective date hereof, but not
payable until after the effective date hereof. Grantee shall be responsible for all
sales, use and similar taxes arising out of the transfer of the Property.
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This conveyance shall be binding on the paﬁies and their successors and assigns. Grantee’s
indemnity obligation under Paragraph 3 is a covenant running with the Property conveyed
hereunder, and shall be binding upon Grantee and all subsequent grantees of the Property or any

interest therein.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD unto Grantee, its successors and assigns forever.

EXECUTED the day and year first above written, but effective as of the 1st day of January, 2004.

GRANTOR:

GRANTEE:

THE STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF HARRIS §

CHEVRON U.S.A. INC.

By:

Name / Title: _
Larry C. LaFleur, Assistant Secretary
Yates Petroleun Cormparation

Name / Title: PEYTOR —IN-FACT

This instrument was acknowledged before me this 21st day of November, 2003, by Larry C. LaFleur,
Assistant Secretary for CHEVRON U.S.A. INC., a Pennsylvania corporation, on behalf of said

corporation.

§ £535¢\, CHARLES F. HOLMES §
\ z o) NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF TEXAS 5
§ '-Q MY COMMISSION EXPIRES
YR’  APRILG, 2006

S PIPIIIIII I ST I I I

s’J

LV'#/‘

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas
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THE STATE OF_NEW MEXTCO §
COUNTYOF__®ppy  §

, 4
This instrument was ackmowledged before me this O )Q—‘ day of JANUARY, 2008, by
PEYTON YATES ~IN-F, ‘PETROLEUM CORPORATION, a New Mexico

" corporation, on behalf of corporation.
kT\ Oﬂl)ﬂm Ll fi{/\ o

; NOTARY PUBLIC-STATZ OF NEW MExico Notary Pubhc m and for the State of NEW MEXICO..
PR 0

My comlssion explre;:
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Exhibit A"
Aflached to and made a part of that certain Mineral Deed dated effective Jan.1 % by and between Chevron U.S.A.
: Inc., as Grantor, and Yates Petroleum famp,  Grantee
Listoor Lega) Degcription
TEPI # Grantor Grantee Date Recerding
Tide Water 2080 acres of land, more or less, belng the SW/4 of Section 23, and
Bruce K. Matlock . ' the W/2 of the W/2 of Section 25, and the N/2 and the SE/4 of
085411 . etux "Séz‘r’r'f‘:d Oil [ 82011950 | Book 77, Page 13 o vion 26, and all of Sectlons 27 and 34, T25-R29E, N.MP M.,
‘ pany Raosevelt County, New Mexico.

Exhibit Prepared by
James L. Gunderson "t . S
ChevronTexaco aney caran YL
11111 S, Wiicrest, #52402 o

Houston, TX 77099 -

Pedun 1o°
. Ené(rlgw?t.com, Inc.
7201 1-40 West Suite 319
Amarillo, Texas 79106




Grace Charboneau

rom: . . Jim Ball [imb@pyatesholdings.com]
‘ent: i Friday, October 10, 2014 5:04 PM
- To: ‘ grace@stratanm.com
Subject: Update on Tule OGL
Attachments: ~° image001.png

.

Went through everything you have sent over the past months. Monday morning | will go through our files and will call
you after that review is done. That would be great if | could find a ratification or word of intent for one to be signed.
We also received notice today on the pooling. Have great weekend.

Jim Ball
Landman

Yates Holdings LLP

P. 0. Box 1394

Artesia, NM 88211-1394

Direct Phone: {575) 7368572
Main Phone: (575) 736-8575
Fax: {575) 736-8577

Email: jimb@yatesholdings.com

.nis message may contain confidential information and is intended for the named recipient only. if you are not the

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

Sent: Friday, October 10, 2014 8:29 AM

To: grace@stratanm.com

Subject: Did not get to it last night but will try to get to it in the next hour.

Jim Ball
Landman

" Yates Holdings LLP

P. 0. Box 1394
rtesia, NM 88211-1394
irect Phone: (575) 736-8572
Main Phone: (575) 736-8575



Fax: (575) 736-8577
Email: jimb@yatesholdings.com

"his message may contain confidential information and is intended for the named recipient only. If you are not the

Intended recipient you are notified that disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in reliance on the contents
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
ent: Tuesday, October 14, 2014 12:41 PM
To: ‘Jim Ball'
Subject: RE: was ill yesterday.. will get on this agian this morning.
Attachments: Yates.pdf; image001.png
i
Mr. Jlm,

Attached is a copy of the ratification that was send out in 2010. | don t know if this helps or makes it worse.

Grace Charboneau
Division Order Analyst

Sovereign Exploration Company, L.L.C.

P.O. Box 968
Roswell, NM 88202
(575) 622-1127 Ext. 20

|t om———— v - . e e e - er——— A A o s S e B —— A

From: Jim BaII {ma|lto Jtmb@yatesholdmgs com]

Sent: Tuesday, October 14, 2014 9:19 AM

To: grace@stratanm.com

Subject: was ill yesterday.. will get on this agian this morning.

-Jim Ball
Landman

Yates Ho!dmgs LLP

P. 0. Box 1394

Artesia, NM 88211-1394

Direct Phone: (575) 736-8572
Main Phone: (575} 736-8575
Fax: {575) 736-8577

Email: imb@yatesholdings.com

This:message may contain confidential information and is intended for the named recipient only. If you are not the
intended recipient you are notified that disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in reliance on the contents
of this information is strictly prohibited. E-mail transmission cannot be guaranteed to be secure or error-free as
information could be intercepted, corrupted, lost, destroyed, arrive late or incomplete, or contain viruses. The sender

" therefore does not accept liability for any errors or omissions in the contents of this message, which arise as a result of

e-mail transmission. If verification is required please request a hard-copy version.



RATIFICATION AND RENTAL STIPULATION

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, That:

WHEREAS, the undersigned owns an interest in the following described lands (herein
called “Said Lands”) in the County of Roosevelt, State of New Mexico subject to the following
described oil and gas lease (herein called “Said Lease”), to-wit:

Lessor: Texaco Producing Inc.

Lessee: DEKLB Energy Company

Date: 5-27-1986

Recorded: Book 122 - Page 139

Lands: Township 2 South - Range 29 East, N.M.P.M.
Section 23: SW

Section 26: EVaANW Y,
Section 27: All

WHEREAS, the undersigned desire to ratify Said Lease and to stipulate as to the amount
of delay rentals, if any, which may become payable under the terms of Said Lease with respect to
the interest of the undersigned in Said Lands:

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the sum of Five Dollars ($5.00) and other
valuable consideration, the receipt, adequacy and sufficiency of which are hereby expressly
acknowledged by the undersigned, the undersigned hereby agree as follows:

1. If any delay rentals hereafter become payable under the terms of Said Lease with
respect to the interest in Said Lands now held by the undersigned, the amount of such delay
rentals payable to the undersigned shall be as follows:

NAME: Yates Petroleum Corporation AMOUNT: N/A



and payment or tender of such amount in the manner specified in Said Lease will constitute full
and proper compliance with the delay rental provisions of Said Lease so as to maintain Said
Lease in full force and effect with respect to the entire interest now being held by the
undersigned in Said Lands, whatever such interest may be, during the entire period covered by
such delay rental payment.

2. If any shut-in royalty hereafter becomes payable under the terms of said Lease
with respect to the interests in Said Lands now held by the undersigned, the amount of such shut-
in royalty payable to the undersigned shall be as follows:

NAME: Yates Petroleurn Corporation AMOUNT: $31.62

and payment or tender of such amount in the manner specified in Said Lease will constitute full
and proper compliance with the shut-in royalty provisions of Said Lease so as to maintain Said
Lease in full force and effect with respect to the entire interest now being held by the
undersigned in Said Lands, whatever such interest may be, during the entire period covered by
such shut-in royalty.

3. The undersigned hereby ratifies revives and confirms the validity of Said Lease as
being in full force.and effect in accordance with its terms and hereby acknowledge the timely
payment and receipt in full of all payments of delay rentals and shut-in royalties, if any,
heretofore payable under the provisions of Said Lease on account of the interest of the
undersigned in Said Lands.

4. The undersigned further presently grants, leases and lets Said Lands to the lessee
named in Said Lease or his successors and assigns in accordance with the terms and provisions
of Said Lease to the full extent of the undersigned’s right, title and interest in Said Lands.

5. With respect to and for the purposcs of this instrument and Said Lease, the
undersigned hereby release all rights of dower and/or homestead in Said Lands.



6. This instrument shall be binding upon the undersigned and his heirs, personal
representatives, successors and assigns.

EXECUTED THIS day of 20 .

Yates Petroleum Corporation

State of New Mexico
County of Roosevelt

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of ,
2010, Yates Petroleum Corporation, on behalf of said corporation.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:







Grace Charboneau

rom: Grace Charboneau [gcharboneau@stratanm.comj
‘nt: Wednesday, October 15, 2014 1:38 PM
o - ‘Jim Ball'
Subject: RE: Questions.OGL Tule area
Attachments: image001.png
Mr. Jim,

| plead the fifth on that one. | didn't work those up, but let me ask some questions when Mitch gets back tomorrow and
Iliet you know. | really don't have a clue. Let me ask questions and I'll let you know.
Sorry about that.

Grace Charboneau
Division Order Analyst -

Sovereign Exploration Company, L.L.C.
P.O. Box 968

Roswell, NM 88202

(675) 622-1127 Ext. 20

From: Jim Ball [mailto:jimb@yatesholdings.com]
.Bnt: Wednesday, October 15, 2014 1:26 PM
0: grace@stratanm.com

Subject: Questions.OGL Tule area

Questions....

Under the lease that was supposedly ratified it covers 880 acres..... with the shut in being $31.62. What is the basis for
that amount?

When | take the 23.7092 net acres 'indicated in the lease you drafted up for me under the 480 acre description the ratios
do not match up with the above.

Jim Ball
tandman

<,

o

OLDINGS

Yates Holdings LLP

P. 0. Box 1354

Artesia, NM 88211-1394

Direct Phone: (575) 736-8572
ain Phone: (575) 736-8575
x: (575) 736-8577

Email: jmb@yatesholdings.com




This message may contain confidential information and is intended for the named recipient only. If you are not the
intended recipient you are notified that disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in reliance on the contents
this information is strictly prohibited. E-mail transmission cannot be guaranteed to be secure or error-free as
formation could be intercepted, corrupted, lost, destroyed, arrive late or incomplete, or contain viruses. The sender
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
&ent: Thursday, October 16, 2014 3:21 PM
o: grace@stratanm.com
Subject: FW: revised Counter OGL Form
Attachments: image001.png; 20141016101658896.pdf; EXHIBIT A OGL YB to Soverign Exploration .docx

See one small revision in red....three words. Changed for better clarity.

Jim Ball
Landman

Yates Holdings LLP

P.O. Box 1394

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
Sent: Thursday, October 16, 2014 3:15 PM

To: grace@stratanm.com

Subject: Counter OGL Form

Grace | spent a great deal of time going over the lease form that was presented in the Sovereign Exploration offer to
Yates Brothers. To be quite frank it was horrible. There is no way we could have an agreement on that form of lease and
it would take too many changes to be a legible flowing document. Overnight | pondered what | should do as a counter
and the following is what | came up with as a great option in my opinion.

! will have the best chance of getting the Yates to sign a lease with Soveriegn (and the W-9) on the basis shown below. |
am not saying | will be successful but | will do my best to make it work.

e Use the attached Yates Holdings Hall-Poorbaugh Producers 88 form but with paragraph #9 all crossed out and
the Exhibit “A” attached to it (Also attached to this email). Note paragraph #9 in the lease form will be replaced
by the wording in the first paragraph on the Exhibit “A” as #11. | have already customized the exhibit for your
convenience.

e | will do my best to present to the Yates a 3 year term, 1/6" royalty and $25.00 per net acre bonus. The lands

. in the lease will be limited to only the N/2 of the section. In the event there is a force pooling hearing that Yates
Brothers is subject to and/or if the royalty and bonus on any lands leased or force pooled in the N/2 and/or

1




adjoined lands within 1 mile around the N/2 that is determined by Yates Brothers to be greater than what you
are offering now, Yates will insist it receiving the equivalent of the maximum increase in a more favorable term,
bonus and royalty.

‘et me know if this will work. This is the lease form | have repeatedly given to oil and gas friends of the Yates, Murphy
and Krakauskas families. | feel it is a fair lease with credibility and approval to oil and gas industry-type minerai owners
and will go a long way in attempting to persuade the Yates to sign the lease and deal. Thanks.

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
hformation could be intercepted, corrupted, lost, destroyed, arrive late or incomplete, or contain viruses. The sender
therefore does not accept liability for any errors or omissions in the contents of this message, which arise as a resuit of
e-mail transmission. If verification is required please request a hard-copy version.



. FIVE YEAR PAID UP LEASE) Form 345
Produccrs 88 Rev. (5 Year Lease) 5-96 é)][_, AND CAS LEASE Hall-Poorbaugh T e

Roswell, New Mexice

THIS AGREEMENT made this day of 19 between
Lessor (whether one or more), whose address is
and Lessee, WITNESSETH:
1. Lessor in consideration of Dollars

(63 Y in hand paid, of the royaltics herein provided and of the agreements of Lessec hescin contained, hereby grants, 1edses and lets exclusively unto Lessee for the
purpose of investigating, exploring, prospecting, drilling and mining for and producing oil und gas, laying pipe lincs, building roads, tunks, power stalior}s. telephone lines and other structuces
\hercon and on, over and across lands owned or claimed by Lessor adjacent and contiguaus thereto, to produce, suve, take care of, treat, transport, and own said products, and housing its employees,

the foltowing described land in County, | 10-wit:

2. Without reference to the commencement, prosecution or cessation at any time of drilling or other developmeat operations and/or to the discovery, devetopment or cessation at any time of
production of oil or gas and without further payments than the royaliies herein provided, and notwithstanding anything else hercin contained to the contrary, this lease shall be for a term of five ycars
from this date. {called “primary term”) and as long thereafter as oil or gas is produced from said land or land with which said tand is pooled hercunder.

3, The royalties to be puid by Lessee are: (@) on oil, _______ of that produced and saved from said land, the sume to be delivered at the wells or to the credit of Lessor inte the pipe line to
which the welis may be connected: Lessee may from time to time purchase any royalty oil in its possession, paying the market price therefor prevailing for the ficld where produced on the date of
purchase; (b) on gas, including casinghead gas or other gaseous substance, produced from said land, and sold, or used off the premises or for the extraction of gasoline ot other product therefrom,
the market vilue at the well of of the gus so sold or used, provided that on gas sold at the wells the royalty shall be of the amount reatized from such sale; white
there is a gas well on this Jease or on acreage pooled therewith but gas is not being sold or used, Lessee may pay or tender us royalty, on or before ninety (90) days after the date on which said well
is shut in and thereafter at annual intervals the sum of $1.00 per acre, and if such payment is made or tendeted, this Jease shall not terminate and it will be considered that gas is being produced from
this lease in paying quantilies. Payment or tender of said shut-in gas royalty may be made by check or draft of Lessee mailed or delivered 10 the parties entiticd thereto on or before the date said
payment is due. Lessee shall have free use of oil, gas, coul and water from said land, except waler from Lessor's wells, for all operations hereunder, and the royalty on oil and gas shall be compuled

afier deducting any so used.

4. Lessee, atits option, is hereby given the right and power to pool or combine the acreage covered by this Jease, or any portion thereof as to oil and gas, or either of them, with other land, lease
or leases in the immediate vicinity thereof to the extent, hereinafter stipulated, when in Lessee's judgement it s necessary or advisable to do s in order properly 1o explore, or to develop and operate
said leased premises in compliance with the spacing rules of the New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission, or other lawful authority or when to do so wauld, in the judgment of chsc:. promote
the coaservation of oil and gas in and under and that may be produced from said premises. Units pooled for oil hereunder shall not substantially ucccd_ 49 acres cach in arca, and units pooled for
gas hereunder shall not substantially exceed in area 640 acres each plus a lolcrancc_ of N_)% lh:r:gt'. provided l]m_t should governmental uulhnrf'ty having jurisdiction prcsclel:»c or permit the creation
of units larger than those specified, units thereafter created may conform substntially in size with those presesibed by povernmental regulations. Lessee under the provisions hereof may pool or
combine acreage covered by this lease, or any portion thereof ns above provided as (o oil in any ene or more strata and as (o gas in any one or more strata. The units formed by pooling as to any
sramum or strata need not conform in Size or area with the unit or units into which the lease is poeled or combined as 1o any other stratum or strata, and oil units need not conform as to arca with
gas units. The pooling in one or more instances shall not exhaust the rights of the Lessee hereunder to pool this lease or portions thereof into other units, Lessee shall file for record in the
appropriate records of the county in which the leased premuses are siwated an instrument describing und designating the pooled acreage as a pooled unit. Lcs.?cc may at ils election exercise its
pooling option after commencing operatons for or completing an oil or gas well on the leased premises, :}nd the poqlcd unit may i{lc_ludc. butitis not rc_qmr:d t0 include, iand orfeases upon which
a well capable of producing oit or gas in paying guanlities has theretofore been compleied or upan which eperations for the drilling of 4 well for 0il or gas have theretofore been commenced.
Operations for drilling on or production of ¢il or gas from any part of the pooled vnit which includes all or 4 portion of the land covered by this lease regardless of whether such operations for
dritling were commenced or such production was sccun::d befare or after the execution of this instrument or the insu'u‘mcn! designating the pooled unit, shall be considered us operations for drilling
on or production of oil and gas from 1and covered by this Jease whedser or not the welt or wells be located on the premises covered by this lease, and the entise acreage constituiing such unit of vnits,
a5 to oil and gas, or either of them, as herein provided, shull be treated for alt purposes, except the payment of royaltes an production from the pooled unit, as if the same were included in this lease.
For the purpose of compuling the royalties 10 which awners of royalties and payments out of production and each of them, shall be entitled on production of 6il and gas, or cither of them, from the
pooted unit, there shall be allocaicd to the tand cavered by this lease. and included in said unil a pro rata portion of thie oil and gas, or either of them, produced froin the pooled unit after deducting
that used for operations on the pooled units. Such allocation shall be on acreage basis—that is to say, theee shall be allocated to the acreage covered by this lease and included in the pooled unit that
pra rata portion of the oil and gas, or ejther of them, produced from the pooled unit which the number of surfuce acres covered by this lease and included in the pooled unit bears to the total number
of surface acres included in the pooled unit, Royalties hereunder shall be computed on the portion of such production, whether it be oil and gas, or either of them, so allocated to the land covered
by this lease and included in the unit just 2s though such production were from such fand. The production from an oil well will be considered production from the lease or oil pooled unit from which
it is producing and not as production from a gos pooled nit; and preduction {rom a gas well will be considered us production from the lease or gas pooled unit from which it is producing and not
from an oil pooled unit. in addition to the foregoing, Lessee at its option is hereby given the right and power from time o tme 1o commit said land or any part or formation or mineral substance
covered hereby to any cooperative or unit agreement or plan of development and operation, and (o any modifications thereof, which have been approved by the New Mexico Ol Conservation
Commission or other lawful governmental au[horfly. In s_uch event, the royalty payable to Lessor hereunder shall be computed and paid on the basis of the oil or gas allocated to such land under
the erms of any such agreement or plan of operation, which basis shall be the same by which the royalty duc the United States or the State of New Mexico is computed and paid. This lease shalt
not expire ducing the life of such agreement or plan and shali be subject to the terms thereof und said agreement or plan of opcration shall be filed with the New Mexico Qil Conscrvation
Commission, or other law{u! authority, und Lessee shail record in the county in which the leased premises are situaied, an instrument describing such agreement or plan of operation and reflecting
the commitment thereto, and the same may be recorded either before or after the completion of wells.

3. If at the expiration of the primiry teem oil or gas is not being produced on said land. or from land pooled therewith, but Lessee is then engaged in drilling or reworking operations thereon
of shall have completed a dry hole thereon within 60 days prior to the end of the primary terms, the lease shall remain in force s0 long as operations on said well or for drilling or reworking of an);
additional well are prosecuted with no cessation of more than 60 consecutive days, and if they result in the production of oil or gas so long thereafter as oil or gas is produced from said land, or from
lund pooled therewith. If, after the expiraion of the primary term of this lease and after oil or gas is produced from said land, or from land pooled therewith, the production thereof should cense from
any cause, this lease shall not \erminaie ichssct.j commences operations for drilling or reworking within 60 days after the cessation of such praduction, but shalf remain in force and effect .so long
as such operations are prosceuted with 00 cessation of more than 60 consccutive days, and if they result in the production of oil and gas, so long thereafter as oil ar gas is produced from said land
or from land pooled therewith, Any pooled unit designated by Lessee in accordance with the terms hereof, may be dissolved by Lessee by instrument filed for record in the appropriate records of
the county in which the leascd premises are situated at any ume after the completion of a dry hole or the cessation of production on said unit, In the event a well or walls producing il or g:l-s in
payiog quanlities should be brought in on adjacent land and within 660 feet of and draining the lease premises, or land pooled therewith, Lessec agrees to drill such offset well or wells as a
reasonably prudent aperator would drifl under the same or similar circumstances, Lessee may at any Gme execule and deliver to Lessor or place of record a release or releases covering any an.i.on
or portions of the above described preimises and thereby surrender this lease as to such portion or portions and be relieved or all obligations as to the ge suttrendered. F

6. Lessee shall have the right st any time during or after the expiration of this lease to remove all property und fixtures pluced by Lessee on said land, including the
. ’ u " ihe ; ¢ OF . right 1o draw and
zx!; ﬁasmﬁ When required by Lessor, Lessee will bury all pipe lines below ardinary plow depth, and no well shall be drilled within two hundred feet of any resid&ncc orgbm—n now on S;Zn;m
without Lessor's consent.

7. The rights of either party hereunder may be assigned in whole or in part, and the provisions hereof shall exiend 1o their heirs, successors and assigns but no change or division in ownershi
of_v.hc land ot royalties, however accontplished, shall operate 1o enlarge the abligaticns or diminish the fights of Lessee; and no change or division in such ownership shall be binding on Lessee unu’ﬂ
thirty (30) days after Lessee shall have been furnished by registered U.S. muil al Lessee's principal place of business with a certified copy of recarded instrument or instruments evidencing same
In the cvent of assignment hereof in wholc_ or 1 part liability for breach of any obligation hereunder shall rest exclusively upon the owner of this lease or of a porion thereaf who commibxs such'
breach. If six or more partes become entilled ta royilty hereunder, Lessee may withhold payment thereaf uniess and until furnished with a recordable instrument cxccuted by all such pactie.
designating an agent 1o receive payment for all. Y pacies

8. The breuch by Lessec of any obligation urising hereunder shall not work a forfeiture or lermination of this lease nor cause a lermination or tevision of the estate ereated hereby nor be
graunds far cancellation hereaf in whale or in part. la the avent Lessoc cansiders thad operations ase not &t any time being condurted in compitance With this lease, Lessor shall nodf lj’c;sz: i
'wriling of the facis relied upon as canskituting 2 breach hereof, 2nd Lessee, if in default, shall have sixty days after ceceipt of such notice in which 10 commence the colmp]iancc with rhc{)h]i uliml:n
imposed by virtue of this inslrument, After the discovery of oit or gos in paying quantities on siid premises, Lessee shall develop the acreage retined hercunder as a reasonably prudent 08 ratms'
butin discharging this obligation it shall in no event by reguired to drill more thun one well per farty (40) acres of the area retained hereundse and capuble of producing oil in paying quanﬁl?:s and
one well per 640 acres plus an acreage (ofsrance 4ot 1o cacced 10% of 640 acses of (he arca reladned hereunder and capadle of producing gas in puying quantities.

9. Lessor hereby warrants and agrees to defend Lhe e to suid land and agrecs that Lessee 2t its option may discharge any tax, moctgage oc other lien upon said land either in whole or in part
and in event Lessee does so, it shall be subrogated to such lien with the right to enforce same and npply royaltics accruing hereunder Loward satisfying same. Without impairment of Lessee's g h;
under the waytanty in even: of tailure of tle, itis agreed that if Lessor owns an interest in the oil or gas on, in or under said land less thaa the entire fee simple estule, then the royalties 1o be gid
Lessor shall be reduced proportionately. Should any one or more of the parties named as Lessors fuil to cxecute this lease, it shall nevertheless be binding upen the {mny or p:u:gcs cxecudngplhu
sume.

0. Should Lessec be prevented from pomplying_ with any express or implied covenant of this lease, from conducting drilling or reworking operations thercon or from producing oil or gas
lhcrcf(om by reason of scarcity of or inability to obtain or to use cquipment or material, or by operation of force majeure, any Federal or siate law or any order, rule or regulauon of o%crnmcrﬁ )
authority, then while so prevented, Lessce's obligation to comply with such covenant shall be suspended, and Lessee shall not be liable in damages for failure 1o comply therewith; Ig.nd this ) a‘
shall be exiended while and so long as Lessce is prevented by any such cavse from conducting drilling or reworking, aperations on or from producing oil or gas from the leased zc'misc . y ;ﬁb
time while Lessee is so prevented shall not be counted against Lessee, anything in this lease 10 the contrary nolwitﬁsuuding, P sandhe

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument is exccuted on the date first above written.

Lessor Lessor



INDIVIDUAL ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

QTATE OF NEW MEXICO,
ounty of } ss.

This instrument was acknowledged before me this

by

My commission expires

Notary Public

CORPORATION ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF NEW MEXICO,
County of } 8.

This instrument was acknowledged before me this

by as

.!f corporation

on behalf of said corporation.

My commission expires

Notary Public
INDIVIDUAL ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF NEW MEXICO,
County of } ss.

This instrument was acknowledged before me this
by
My commission expires

Notary Public.
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EXHIBIT A

ATTACHED AND MADE A PART OF THAT CERTAIN OIL AND GAS LEASE DATED THE DAY OF
, 2014 BETWEEN YATES BROTHERS, A PARTNERSHIP, AS LESSOR AND SOVERIEGN

EXPLORATION COMPANY LLC, AS LESSEE.

11. Lessee may discharge any tax, mortgage or other lien upon said land, and in the event lessee does so
it shall be subrogated to such lien with the right to enforce same and to apply royalties and shut-in
royalities payable hereunder toward satisfying same. If this lease covers a less interest in the oil and gas
in all or any part of said land than the entire and undivided fee simple estate (whether lessor’s interest is
herein specified or not) then the royalties, shut-in royalty, and other payments, if any, accruing from any
pért as to which this lease covers less than such full interest, shall be paid only in the proportion which
the interest therein, if any, covered by this lease, bears to the whole and undivided fee simple estate

therein.

12. Notwithstanding any other provisions hereof, at the end of the primary term, all acreage not
included in a proration unit as designated by the New Mexico Oil Conservation Division shall be
automatically eliminated from this Lease and revert to LESSOR, unless LESSEE is drilling a well on the
leased premises or on lands pooled therewith, in which event the Lease will be held in its entirety as
long as not more than one hundred eighty (180) days elapse between the completion of one well and
the commencement of another. Completion shall be defined as (1) the date on which a dry hole is
plugged or (2) the date certified to the New Mexico Oil Conservation Division as the date a well has been
completed as a producing well, whichever be appropriate. “Commencement” shall be defined as the
date drilling operations are commenced on the leased premises or on lands pooled therewith. At the
end of the continuous drilling program, if any, this lease will automatically terminate as to all lands
covered hereby which have not been so fully developed and as to lands so fully developed shall
terminate as to all depths lying more than 100’ below the total depth drilled.

13. Lessor shall receive all well information and/or data including daily drilling reports at the same time
and manner as the working interest owners obtain their information. Lessor shall receive one copy of all

. such information and/or data. Lessor shall also timely receive all title opinions such as but not limited to
Drilling Title Opinions, Division Order Title Opinions and any amendments, supplements and/or
corrections related thereto such documents and covering any portion of the leased lands or lands
pooled therewith.

14. Lessee shall within 60 days after its receipt submit to Lessor one county recorded copy of this oil and
gas lease document. Lessee shall record in the county clerk’s records within 60 days a release of oil and
gas lease as to those portions of lands and depths which will have terminated under the terms of the
lease. Lessor shall receive from Lessee one recorded copy of the release document within 60 days after
such document has been received by Lessee from the county clerk.

15. Notwithstanding any other provisions hereof, in the event Lessee has not delivered the documents,
information and/or materials timely under the lease terms herein, Lessor shall give Lessee a written
request for such documents, information and/or materiais and the Lessor of record shall have 10 days
from receipt of written notice in which to provide the materials so requested.

16. Lessor conveys no warranties of any kind, express or implied. o

END OF EXHIBIT A




Grace Charboneau

rom: Jim Ball [jimb@yatesholdings.com]
‘ent: Tuesday, October 21, 2014 2:43 PM
fo: grace@stratanm.com
-“Subject: RE: Counter on Tule Field OGL of Sovereign.
Attachments: image001.png; 20141021144540721.pdf

Grace, |have gone over the Sovereign lease form with Mr. Yates. Please see the requested changes that are attached
and note the exhibit A that is also attached. Let use this rough amend version to settle our differences if that is possible.
You may be able to read the hand writing better if blown up. If not let me know and | can read it to you in certain
instances. Note that the last sentence of paragraph 14 which f crossed our | do have flexibility in what we can accept. |
think the wording could be left in if it had a sentence added afterwards that said the interest would not be unreasonably
held in suspense.

If we do not settle the differences then we know if will be force pooled. | however would have to ask for a continuance
because of several follow-up medical appointments that | cannot miss in Oklahoma City on October 30th. If it had to be
continued then | will also not be able to attend a hearing on November 17" and 18 due to appearing as a witness in
Federal Court in Albuquerque.

Fwill Be leaving for Santa Barbara, California on this Thursday afternoon to attend a funeral of a friend of mine and Mark
Murphy’s {Jim Dawson). | will return on Monday mid-day so if we can get this resolved before | leave that would be
great.

Jim Ball

Yates Holdings LLP

P.O.Box 1394

Artesia, NM 88211-1394 .

Direct Phone: (575) 736-8572

Main Phone: (575) 736-8575 ~
Fax: (575) 736-8577

Email: imb@yatesholdings.com

This message may contain confidential information and is intended for the named recipient only. !If you are not the
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
e-mail transmission. f verification is required please request a hard-copy version.

From: Grace Charboneau [mailto:gcharboneau@stratanm.com]
Sent: Monday, October 20, 2014 4;28 PM
To: 'Jim Ball'

.ubject: RE: counter Tule Field

Mr. Jim,



Well | hope your travels were good and safe last week. It is always nice to get out of town to get a change of scenery.

Thank you for your response to my previous email and phone calis. 1 would love to still try to reach an agreement on
e lease if at all possible.

- Currently, we have several hundreds of different mineral owners that are currently on the lease form that we presented
to you. We would like to continue to use our lease form at this time. If you would like to change the lease form that |
sent to you around, then | would be more than happy to present it to Mitch at that time. Without knowing for sure
what you do not like about our lease form, it is hard to know if we can work with it or not. | know thatitis a
tremendous amount of work for you and | apologize for that, but please take a moment to try to do the changes to the
form that | sent to you please.

The title apinion is something that is provided to working interest owners because it is paid for by the working interests
owners typically. As far as royalty owners and the title opinions, we will provide the section of the title opinion that
pertains to the royalty owners only and not a full copy of it at this time.

We are offering for Yates Brothers or any another party mineral owner to become a working interest owner if they
wish. If you choose to do a farmout agreement to YPC, that might be a good opinion for Yates Brothers. However, the
farmout agreement is your choice. We are not going to tell you one way or the other on what you should do. This
would be completely your choice on what you would like to do.

I truly wish | could offer more than the 1/6 royalty and the $25.00 per net mineral acre, but as we are all aware of the
issues we have in that area, it is difficult for production alone. If | could offer more like we could in the Permian Basin, |
would love to. The Tule field/Wildcat Area will not aliow for it to work for everyone.

Piease loak at our lease and start doing changes so that | have a place to start. Please let me know if it is just really not
.n opinion. We are still planning on going forward with the force pooling that is set at the end of this month.

Thank you for your time.

Grace Charboneau
Division Order Analyst

Sovereign Exploration Company, L.L.C.
P.O. Box 968

Roswell, NM 88202
(575) 622-1127 Ext. 20

From: Jim -Ba!I [maiito:jimb@y‘ atesholdings.com]
Sent: Friday, October 17, 2014 2:23 PM

To: grace@stratanm.com
Subject: counter Tule Field

Grace,

The Sovereign lease has too many changes. Don t have time to change ...that would take too long..... I do notlikeit... It

. the worst | have ever seen in my career and | cannot in good conscience put it in front of the Yates and say sign it. it
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
pinions are given to WI owners but | agree with that statement because they pay forit. EQUALLY AS COMMON AS
HAT IS THE FACT THAT industry royalty owners require the same thing in their standard lease forms and that is what
the Yates family is requiring just like all the other industry royalty owners.

Try getting a lease without giving a TO and well info from the Cowdens, Scarburoughs, DK Boyd, Everett Haley, Andy
Grooms, Featherstones, Tom and Tim fennings to name a few. Yes we will be a royalty owner but this will be a condition
of the lease......and such a condition or request is normal for an industry royalty owner such as Murphy to ask for it.

Final point, Murphy Oil Corp. has required it of me in the past | am 99% sure of it. Look at it this way too. I canflipit to
YPC or another party and they then give Sovereign a farmout agreement ..... such a title opinion and well data would
also be normal in the requirement of the farmout agreement ....... So does Sovereign want to deal with another party in
negotiating a FO Agreement? Probably not. 1 hope we can agree to get the T.O. topic resolved in about one second
and move on to the more important issues of the wording of the processing the gas etc.

It will cost Sovereign 2 minutes of time and about $3.00 of ink to satisfy this issue. 1 further would see it as a courtesy
when Sovereign is offering only $25.00 per net acre and 1/6 royalty on a field that is has been producing for 30 years.

{ am late leaving town and am going out the door. Thasnk.

Jim Ball
Landman

b LDINGS

.ates Holdings LLP

P. 0. Box 1394

Artesia, NM 88211-1394

Direct Phone: {5§75) 736-8572
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

From Grace Charboneau [ma:lto qcharboneau@stratanm com]

Sent: Friday, October 17, 2014 1:00 PM

To: 'Jim Ball'

Subject: RE: Looks like I misspelled Sovereign's name on the Exhbit A header. I will change that.

Mr. Jim, :
spoke to Mitch again about the title opinions and the drilling opinions. He basically said that we would provide you
th a copy of your section of the title opinion as a royalty owner. The full title opinion will not be provided to a royalty
owner because the royalty owner was not helping pay for the title opinion cost. Also, in the past, you might have been
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working for a participant in the well and that is why you may not have had a problem getting the copy of the title

opinion in the past.

I have attached a copy of the original lease that was sent to you. If you don't mind, please go through and do the
hanges in our lease that you do not like and add the things that are important to you in. Mitch might come off on some
>f the things in the lease, but | cannot promise anything. The document is set up to where it will track changes as you

type or delete. If you can do this, maybe we might be a step closer to putting this to bed.

Thank you for your help. Have a great day.

Grace Charboneau
Division Order Analyst

Sovereigh Exploration Company, L.L.C.
P.O. Box 968

Rosweli, NM 88202

(575) 622-1127 Ext. 20

From: Jim Ball [mailto:jiimb@yatesholdings.com]

Sent: Thursday, October 16, 2014 4:54 PM

To: grace@stratanm.com

Subject: Looks like I misspelled Sovereign's name on the Exhbit A header. I will change that.

Looks like | misspelled Sovereign's name on the Exhibit A header. | will change that.

m Ball
.andman

Yates Holdings LLP

P.O.Box 1394

Artesia, NM 88211-1394

Direct Phone: {575) 736-8572
Main Phone: (575) 736-8575
Fax: {575) 736-8577

Email: imb@yatesholdings.com

This message may contain confidential.information and is intended for the named recipient only. If you are not the
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

.IS LEASE AGREEMENT is made as of the 21th day of August 2014.between Yates Brothers, a Partnership, whose address is
PO Box 1394, Artesia, NM_88211 as Lessor (whether one or more), and Sovereign Exploration Company, LLC, whose address is
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
comprises more or less (including any interests therein which Lessor may hereafier acquire by reversion, prescription, re-survey, or
otherwise), for the purpose of exploring for, developing, producing and marketing oil and gas, along with all hydrocarbon products
and by-products, and non-hydrocarbon substances produced in association therewith (“Oil and Gas Substances™). This lease also
covers and includes all land owned or claimed by Lessor adjacent or contiguous to the land particularly described above, whether or
not the same be within the boundaries of the land particularly described above. The term “gas” as used herein includes helium, carbon
dioxide, gaseous sulfur compounds, methane produced from coal formations and other commercial gases, as well as normal
hydrocarbon gases. In addition to the above-described land, this lease and the term “Leased Premises” also covers accretions and
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

emain confidential, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Lessor hereby conveys and exchanges this
‘;reement.

3 Ancillary Rights. The rights granted to Lessee hereunder shall include the right of ingress and egress on the Leased Premises or
lands pooled or unitized therewith, along with such rights as may be rcasonably necessary to conduct operations for exploring,
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
water produced from the Leased Premises or other lands that share central facilitics and are jointly operated with the Leascd Premises
for gathering, treating, compression and water disposal. In its operations, Lessee shall have free use of any Oil and Gas Substances,
water and/or other substances produced on the Leased Premises, except water from Lessor’s wells or ponds, and the royalty shall be
computed afier deducting any such substances used. In exploring, developing, producing or marketing from the Leased Premises or
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

a) grants a mineral permit for entry, exit, egress for alf exploration and drilling purposes, including but not limited to surface
seismic data acquisition, cross- well seismic data acquisition, well logging and data acquisition, airborne, gravity and/or other
remote sensing data acquisition for the term of the lease; and

. b) to the extent Lessor owns or controls surface rights, grants a surface permit for entry, exit, egress for all exploration and
rilling purposes, including but ~ not limited to surfacc seismic data acquisition, cross-well seismic data acquisition, well logging
and data acquisition, airborne, gravity, and /or other remote  sensing data acquisition for the term of the lease; and

c) to the extent Lessor owns or controls surface rights, grants rights-of-way for entry, exit and egress for all exploration,
drilling and development purposes including but not limited to surface vehicles, electrification, oil and gas pipeline, and all related
producing infrastructure. ’

4 Term of Lease. This lease shall be in force for a primary term of five (5) vears from the date hereof, and for as long thereafter as
oil or gas or other substances covered hereby are produced from the Leased Premises or fron: lands pooted or unitized therewith or
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
QOver the five (5) year term extension. If this lease is extended as to only a portion of the acreage then covered hereby, Lessee shall
esignate such portion by a recordable instrument and the additional consideration shall be proportionately reduced.



9 Operations. If Lessee drills a well which Lessee determines is uneconomic (hereinafter called “dry hole™) on the Leased

remises or lands pooled or unitized therewith, or if all production permanently ceases from any cause, including a revision of unit
boundaries pursuant to the provisions of this lease or the action of any governmental authority, then in the event this leasc is not
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
Premises from uncompensated drainage by any well or wells located on other lands not pooled.or unitized therewith. There shall be no
covenant to drill exploratory wells or any additional wells except as expressly provided herein. Notwithstanding anything herein to the
contrary, Lessee shall not be required to drill additional wells or produce Oil and Gas Substances from existing wells that in Lessee's
sole opinion are uneconomic or inadequately priced in the market. As used herein, the term Operations shail mean any activity
conducted on or off the Leased Premises that is reasonably calculated to obtain or restore production, including without limitation,
(1) drilling or any act preparatory to drilling (such as obtaining permits, surveying a drill site, staking a drill site, building roads,
clearing a drill site, or hauling equipment or supplies); (i1} reworking, hydraulic fracturing, plugging back, deepening, treating, testing,
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
erefrom, then on or before 180 days after said well is shut in, and thereafter at annual intervals, lessee may pay or tender an advance
‘lt—in royalty equal to $1.00 per net acre of lessor's gas acreage then held under this lease by the party making such payment or
tender, and so long as said shut-in royaity is paid or tendered, this lease shall not terminate and it shall be considered under all clauses
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
regulatory orders and after application of any appiicable price adjustments specified in such contract or regulatory orders. Lessee’s
failure to properly pay shut-in royalty shall render Lessee liable for the amount due, but shall not operate to terminate this lease.

7. Royalty Payment. For all Oil and Gas Substances that are physically produced from the Leased Premises, or lands pooled,
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

entifted as Post Production Costs. If this occurs, the actual costs of such facilities shall be included in the Post Production Costs as a

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

8, Pooling and Unitization. Lessee, at its option, is hereby given the right and power at any time and from time to time as a
recurring right, either before or after production, as to all or any part of the Leased Premises described herein and as to any one or
.lore of the formations, subsurface depths, or horizons hereunder, to pool or unitize the leasehold estate and the mineral estate covered
y this lease with other land, lease or leases in the immediate vicinity for the production of oil and gas, or separately for the production

of either, when in Lessee’s judgment it is necessary or advisable to do so, and irrespective of whether authority similar to this exists
with respect to such other land, lease or [eases. Likewise, units previously formed to include formations not producing oil or gas, may

be reformed to exctude such non-producing formations. The forming or reforming of any unit shall be accomplished by Lessee
executing and filing of record in the county in which the lease premises are located either before or after completion of well(s) a
declaration of such pooling, unitization or reformation, which declaration shall describe the unit. Any unit may include land upon



Qich a well has theretofore been completed or upon which operations for drilling have theretofore been commenced. Production,

illing or reworking operations, or a well shut in for want of a market anywhere on a unit which includes all or a part of this lease,
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
operation (approved by any govemmental authority, if required by law) and, from time to time, with like approval if required by law,
to modify, change or terminate any such plan or agreement. In such event, the terms, conditions, and provisions of this lease shall be
deemed modified to conform to the terms, conditions, and provisions of such approved cooperative or unit plan of development or
operation and, particularly, all driiling and development requirements of this lease, express or implied, shall be satisfied by
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
ars to the full mineral estate in such part of the Leased Premises. To the extent any royalty or other payment attributable to the
eral estate covered by this lease is payable to someone other than Lessor, such royalty or other payment shall be deducted from the
Corresponding amount otherwise payable to Lessor hereunder.

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

11,  Release of Lease. Lessee may, at any time and from time to time, deliver to Lessor or file of record a written release of this
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

12, Regulation and Delay. Lessee’s obligations under this lease, whether express or implied, shall be subject to all applicable
laws, rules, regulations and orders of any governmental authority having jurisdiction, including restrictions on the drilling and
oduction of wells, and regulation of the price or transportation of oil, gas and other substances covered hereby. When drilling,
orking, production or other operations are prevented or delayed by such laws, rules, regulations or orders, or by inability to obtain
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
is a final judicial determination that a breach or defauit has occurred, this lease shall not be forfeited or cancelled in whole or in part
unless Lessee is given a reasonable time after said judicial determination to remedy the breach or default and Lessee fails to do so.

14, Title. Lessor hereby warrants and agrees to defend title conveyed to Lessee hereunder, and agrees that Lessee at Lessee’s
Q)tion may pay and discharge any taxes, mortgages or liens existing, levied or assessed on or against the Leased Premises. If Lessee
xercises such option, Lessee shall be subrogated to the rights of the party to whom payment is made, and, in addition to its other
rights, may reimburse itself out of any royalties or shut-in royalties otherwise payable to Lessor hereunder. In the event Lessee is
made aware of any claim inconsistent with Lessor’s title, Lessee may suspend the payment of royalties and shut-in royalties
hereunder, without interest, until Lessee has been furnished satisfactory evidence that such claim has been resolved.



WITNESS WHEREOF, this lease is executed to be effective as of the date first written above, but upon execution shall be
nding on the signatory and the signatory’s heirs, devisees, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, whether or not this
lease has been executed by ail parties hereinabove named as Lessor.

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

.ATE OF )
) § ss.

COUNTY OF )

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this day of , 2014, by John A. Yates, Jr., Manager of
Yates Private Equity II LLP, a New Mexico limited liability partnership, in its capacity as general partner of Yates Brothers, a New
Mexico general partnership, on behalf of said partnership.

Notary Public in and for the State of

My Commission Expires: (Scal, if any)




PRODUCERS 88-PAID UP
Revised

OIL AND GAS LEASE

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT is made as of the 21th day ol August 2014 beoween Yates Brothers, a Partnership, whose address is
PO Box 1394, Artesia, NM 88211 as Lessor (whether one or more}, and Sovereign Eapforativn Company, £LC, whose address is
P.0. Box 968, Roswell. NM 88202, as Lessee. All printed portions of this lease were prepared by the parly hercinabove named as
Lessee, but all ather provisions (including the completion of blank spaces) were prepared joinily by Lessor and Lessee.

i Grant of Leased Premises, [n consideration of a cash bonus in hand paid and the covenants herein contained. Lessor hereby
arants, leases and lets exclusively to Lessee the tollowing deseribed land, heremarier called Leased Premises:

Towoship 2 South. Range 29 Last, NMPM
Section 26 N/2, S~ e

these Jands being located in the County of Roosevelr. State of New Mexico. con@ining 23.7092 net acres. whe[hw.r it actually
comprises more or less (inctuding any interests therein which Lessor may hereafter acquire by reversion, preseriptian, Te-survey, Lie
wthervetiey, tor the purpose of exploring for, developing. producing and marketing oil and gas. along with all h\dwc‘-rhon products
and by-products, and non-hydrocarbon substances produced n associdtion therewith Ot and Gas Substances’ [ R LV WIS

"'WWWWMTW&M%M—MWﬂMQH%W‘%WWW Jeretibed-alunue st
Auttbecune e tihinthe houpdarie—ol tu-tand-partivskiedeseribed-wbwie. The term “gas” as used herein includes hdle carbon

dioxide, gascous sulfur compounds, methane produced lrom “coal formations and other ¢ omm;rctal guses, as well as normal
hvdmcarhon gases. In dddmon 10 the abow~d;>cribed land, this lu\k‘n and ihe tenm “Leased Premises™ also covers accretions rne‘
J‘(‘ hruh,éuhc cantiguaus or adjacent to the ahove-deseribed land, and. i
cnmlderduon of zha. utorumnuoned \.ash bonus Lussor agrees to oxecute at Lessee’s request any additional or supplemental
instruments for a more complere or accurate deseription of the land so covered. For the purpose of determining the amount of any
payments based on acreage hereunder, the number of gross acres above specified shall be deemed correct. whether actually more or
less.

2, Consideration. In exchange tor Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good end valuable consideration, the tenus of which shall
remain confidental, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged. the Lessor hereby conveys and exchanges this
Agreement,

3 Ancillary Rights. The rights granted 10 Lessee hereunder shall include the right of ingress and egress on the Leased Premises or
lands paoled or unjlized therewith, along with such rights as may be reasonubly necessary Lo conduet! operations for exploring.
developing. producing and marketing Oif and Gas Substances, including but not limited w Eeoplw:.acal opecations, the drilling of’
wells. and the consteuction and use of roads, canals. pipelines. tanks. water wells, disposal wells. injection wells (including, but not
timited 1o wells to inject gas, waters. other fluids. and alr into subsurtice strata), pits. electric and telephone lines, power stations, and
other facilities deemed necessary by Lessee to explore. discover. produce. store, treat and/or transport Oil and Gas Substunces and
water produced From the Leased Premises or other lunds that share central {acilities and are joinily operated with the Leased Premises

. for gathering. treating. compression and water disposal  1n its operations. Lessee shall have free use ol any Oil and Gas Substances.
water and/or other substances produced on the Leased Premises, excepl water {iom Lessor's wells or ponds. and the royalty shall be
computed after deducting any such substances used. tn exploring. developing. producing or awarketing front the Leased Prenises or
lunds pooled or unitized therewith. the ancillury rights granted herein shall apply (a} to the entire Leased Premises, notwithstanding
any partial release or other partial termination of this lease: and (b) to any other lunds in which Lessor now or hercafier has authority
to grant such rights in the vicinity of the Leased Premises or lands pooled or unitized therewith. When requested by Lessor in writing,
[_essee shall burv its pipelines below ordinary plow depih on cultivated lands. No well shall be Jocated less then 200 leet from any
house or barn now on the Leased Premises or other lands of Lessor used by Lessee hercunder. without Lessor's consent, and Lessee
shull pay for damage caused by its operutions to buildings snd other improvements now on the Leased Premises or such other lands.
and to cammercial timber and growing crops thereon, Lessee shall have the right at any time to remove its fixtures, equipment and
materials, including well casing, from the Leased Premises or such other lands during the term ol this lease or within a reasanable time

thereaficr,

Lessor, by virtue of the lease.
frl ! - Ky . oy . . - - o
a) grants a mineral permit forentry. exit. egress for ait exploration and drilling purposes. including but not limited 1o surface
seismic data acquisition. cross-z. ¢ el seismic data acquisition, well logging wnd data acquisition. airbore, gravity and/or other
remote sensing data acquisition for the term of the lease: and

b) o the extent Lessor owns or controls surface rights, grants a surface perniit for entry, exit. egress for all exploration and
drilling purposcs, including bue — not himited o surface scismic data acquisitian, cross-well seismic data acquisition, well togging
and data acyuisition, irborne, gravity, and for other remaie sensing data acquisition for the term of the lease: and

¢} to the extent Lessor owns or controls surtace rights, grants rights-of-way for entry. exit and egress for all exploration,
drilling and development purposes including but not limited to surface vehicles, clectrification, oil and gas pipehine. and all reluted
prudu»mf_ infrastructure

s
4 Term of Lease. This lease shall be m foree tor a primary werm of m@-ﬂ\mr; lrom the date hereot, and for as long therealier as
oil or gas or other substances covered hereby are produced from the Leased [’lcml&s or from lands pooled or umlm.d thuewnh or

this fease is athenvise maintained in effect pursuant to the pravisions hereof. ret e b gt '!*m,u b be-eeteiyed-pria
Atetheddate on wlm.h lhu- bt L%.WWWMM P vt
Torzperrod {5y vemrertoratrrsertieeof e erengetherhebd-berepnderadie hosaild-aspine ““l Lomgide ke
0;11\; aclion rmunr.‘dJ)u pstien_to_execise this Lt being -the FPTEICRSET TR EFWORYN N S LS e i had et -tttk e

Jhercinabove duntined for. Leasor).of- the-wdditional-consideration-of- the-surm- equial-to. l]‘ldl paiddor- P”lncliy ACFIN - which-Pearemishubh
eerserhefive{ Syerrternreslension— hisdease ds-oxtended-as- ko only-a portion-aithe sonpe-then soveisd-herebvdasses skl
hesigpatesticl-pertorbyresprdable-instetment-sad-tretidditionseonsidertionsalt-bepropertontelyredueed,




A Operations. 1F Lessee drills a well which Lessee detenmines is uneconomic {hereinufter called “dry hole™) on the Leased
Premises or lands pooled or unitized therewith, or if all production permanently ceases from any cause. including a revision of unit
boundaries pursuant to the provisions of this lease or the action ol any governmental authority, then m the event ts lease is not
otherwise being maintained in force it shall nevertheless remain in force it Lessee commences further operations for reworking an
existing well or for drilling an additional well or for otherwise obtaining or restring production on the Leased Premises or lands
pooled or unitized therewith within 180 days afier completion of operations on such dry hole or within 180 days after such cessation
of all production. It after the primary term this lease is not otherwise being maintained in lorce, but Lessee is then engaged in
Operations, as defined below. this Jease shall semain in force so long as any one or more of such Operations are prosecuted with no
interruption of more than 180 consecutive days, and if any such Qperations result in the production of Qil and Gas Substances, as long
thereafter as there is production from the Leased Premises or lands pooled or unitized therewith.  After completion ol o well
hereunder, Lessee shalt drill such additional wells on the .cased Premises or lands pooled or unilized therewith as a reasonably
prudent operator would deill under the same or similar circumstances w {2} develep the Leased Premises . or {b) protect the Leased
Premises [rom uncompensated drainage by any well or wells tocated on other lands not pooled or unitized therewith, There shali be no
covenant to drill exploratory wells or any additional wells except as expressly provided herein. Notwithstanding anything herein 1o the
contrary, Lessee shall not be required to driil additional wetls or produce Gil and Gas Substances {rom existing wells thal Sd-esscems
saleopision are uncconomic ur inadequately priced fn the market. As used herein, the term Operations shall mean any activity
conducted on or olT the l.eased Premises that is reasonably calculated to abtain or restore production, including wethent-Htiniton,
(i) drilling or any act preparatory to drilling (such as oblaining permits. surveying a drill site, siaking @ drill site. building rowds,
clearing a drill site, or hauling equipment or supplies). (i) reworking. hydraulic fracturing. plugging buck. decpening. treating. testing.
stmulating. refitting, nstailing eny artificial Ol or production-enfiancement equipment or technique: {iii) constructing tacifities
retated 1o the production, treatment, transportation und markeling-ol substances produced tram the lease premises: (iv) contracting tor
marketing services and sale of Oil and Gas Substances: and (v) construction of water disposal facilitics and the physical movement of
water produced from the Leased Premises.

6. Shut-in Roysley. Ifat any time when this lease is not validated by other provisions hereeland there is a gas and/or oil well on
said Yand, or land pooled therewith, but pas or oil is not being so sold or used and such well is shut in, either before or after production
theretrom, then on or before 180 days after said well is shut in. and thereafier at annual intervals, lessee may pay or tender an advance
shut-in royalty equal to $1.00 per nel acre of lessor’s gas acreage then held under this lease by the party making such payment or
tender, and so long as said shut-in royalty is paid or tendered. this lease shall not teminate and it shall be considered under all clauses
hereof that gas is being produced from the leased premises in paving quamili«.s‘ Each such payment shall be paid or tendered to the
party or parties who at ( the time of such payment would be entitled 10 receive the mmhéﬁ:ﬁm‘:h would be paid under this lease i1 the
well were in tact producing. The payment or tender of rayalties and shul-in royalties be made by check,medidt. Any timely
payment or tender of shut-in rovalty which is made in a bona fide attempt to make proper payment, but which is erroneous in whole or
in part s to partics or amounts, shall nevertheless be sufficient 1o prevent termination of this lease in the same manner as though a
proper payment had been made if lessee shall correct such error within™ver davs after lessee bus received writlen notice thereof by
. certilied mail {rom the party or parties entitled to reccive payment together with such written instruments {or centified copies thereof) *
as are necessary 10 enable lessee to make proper payment. The amount realized from the sule of vil or gas on or ofl'the premises shall
be the price established by the sales contract entered into in goad taith by lessee and purchaser for such term and under such
conditions as are customary in the industry. “Price” shal) mean the net amount reccived by lessee aller giving effect o applicab!e
regulalory orders .aller.application of-any.applicable price adjustinents. spccthtd in.such contract-er-fegulatony- orders.  Leasee’s
thilwump»féjﬂ' shut-in iovalty shali render Lessee lable (or the amouni due. but shall notapere to tenminate tis lL.m.u_ s

o

_,r

unitized or communitized therewith, and sold. lessor shall receive as its royolty one-sixth_(1/6th) of the sales procecds actually
received by Lessee ar, i applicable, its affiliate, as a result of the first sale ol the aflected production to an unaffiliated pam,‘-w%w
l&‘"’{ o 3:14)_'? {“ﬂjtﬂ. sume pesteatage-share o all Rost Production-Costs-and-this-mine-peresiige-stiaps-eLalbproaduetion—s T badhaalesi i

7 As need_inahis provision HPost.Broduction-Costs-shall-meun afl-costs- qlcumll»qnuuu.d e sgen o s iiiHate -ad-ni-Hosier—
i){‘ s "d "w{da produced: volumes-whether- by use-as-fuel- Hnetoss -Haringrventing nmd%ﬁwmr*mm—und—:ﬂcr—thwﬂhﬁ&—mﬂh—pmmfﬂ-
Als ‘&, ’ 'ﬁ ) L These costs nclude.mbesstebsrittion, ol costs-ol-gathering -marketing compiession - dehydration—transporation ~rensor oo
QL84 i’m!-j “ at-gaseous. substanees-or impuritics -[rom -the - al{ected - praduction - and ~any- other . reatinent- or-processing - required -y the—fest
vaalliliated. party whu-puarchises (he altected- production, ~For-royalty caleufation purposes: Lessee-shall-never-be required-10-adjen

i ’(7“ 2y R . .

a ol I the sates_proceeds. o account.iarthe purchaser s-costs or.charges downstream nlthe point of wite,

il //4” 7 e . I e - . .
‘!// ) ’, v /. Lessee or its affiliate shall have the right to construct, maintain and operate any facilities providing some or all of the services

{/ /j{' Zd identified as Pust Production Costs. Hihis vecurs. the-aciual costs of such facilitizs shall be-included-in-the Post Production Costsssa
') / {/ / A L per-barrel or per-mel charge, as- appropriate.-caleutated-by-spreading the -construction - mainiepance- gnd-operating- vosts—tor-saeh
ugilitics over (he reasonably estimated wotal-production volumes-aitributable (o the well or wells using such-tacilities.

,ymf% P e e
J{ Lessee shall have free use of (il and Gas Substances 0 assist in producing ar enhancing production of Oil and Gas Subsiances and
zb (_‘ ;-’LL Lessor’s royalty shatl be computed afler deducting any Qil and Gas Substances so used, |f Lessee uses the Qi) and Gas Subslances
. (other than to assist in producing or enhancing production of Qil and Gas Substances or as fuel in connection with the production and
f L’lf/& % QM&\. ,({’ 6 saje thereof) in Jicu of receiving sale proceeds, the price 1o be used under this provision shall be based npon arm's-length qdlL(%) io
Sy unattiliated parties for the d[.']pll(.dhl(.. month that are gblainable, comparzble in terms of quality and guantity, and in closest proximily
t’} /J‘{’f” v /’ fcj {}% to the Leased Premises, Such comparable amv's-length sales price shall be less any Post Production Cesls applicable ¢ the specific

acms-tength transaction that is wtilized.

"7//{5 8. Pooling and Wnitization, Lessee, at its option, is hereby given the right and power al any time and from time to lime as a
recurring right. either before or afier production, as (o all or any part of the f.eased Premiscs described herein and as to any one or
more of the formatians, subsurface depths, or horizons hereunder, to pool or unitize the lcaschold estate und the mineral estate covered
by this lease with ather land, lease or leases in the immediate vicinity for the production of ait and gas, or separaely for the productian
of either, when in Lessee’s judgment it is necessary or advisable 10 do 5o, and irrespective of whether authority similar to this exists
with respect to such other land, lease or leases. Likewise, units previausly tormied to include formations not producing oil or gas. may

. be reformed to exclude such non-producing formations. The forming or reforming of any unit shall be accomplished by [essee
executing and filing of record in the county in which the fease premises are focated either before or afier completion of weli(s) a
declaration of such pooling, unilization or reformation, which declarauon shall describe the unit. Any unit may inctude land upon

e Y ot it v B et s - ——— e = -
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! 7. Royalty Payment. For all Oil and Gas Substances that are phvsacal!y produced from the Leased Premises, or lands peoled, {’ ﬁ



which a well has theretofore been completed or upon which operations for diilling have theretofore been commenced. Production,
drilling or reworking operations, or 2 well shut in for want of a market anywhere on a unit which includes all or a part of this Jease,
shalt be treated as it it were production. drilling or reworking operations or a well shut in tor want of market under this lease. In lieu
of the royalties elsewhere herein specitied, including shut-in gas royalties, lessor shall receive on production from the unit 5o pooled
royalties only on the portion of such production that the total number of surfuce acres covered by this lease and included in the unic
bears to the total number of surface acres in such unit. In addition to the foregoing, Lesses shall have the right but not the obligation
to unitize. pool. or combine all or any part of the above described lands or inerest therein as 10 one or more of the formations
thereunder with other lands in the same general area by entering in one or more cooperative or unit plan of development(s) or
operation {approved by any governmental authority, if required by law) and. from time {o time, with like approval if required by law.
e modify. change or terminate any such plan or agreement. In such event, the terms. conditions. and provisions of this lease shall be
deemed modified to conform ta the terms. canditions. and pravisions of such approved cooperative er unit plan of development or
operation and. particularly. all drilling and development requirements of this lease. express or implied. shall be satisfied by
compliapce with the drilling and development requirements of such plan or ogreement. and this Jease shall nol terminate or expire
during the life of such plan or agreement. [n the event that said sbove described lands. or any pari thereof. shall hereafier be operated
under any such cooperative or unit plan of development or operation whereby the production therefrom is allocated to different
portions of the land covered by said plan. then the production allocated to any particular tract of land shall, for the pumpose of
computing the tovattics to be paid hereunder 1o Lessor, be regarded as having been prodeced from the particular tract of land to which
il is allocated and not to any other tract of land: and the rovalty payments to be made hereunder to Lessor shalt be based upon
production only as so allocated, [.essor shalt formally express Lessor’s consent o any cooperative or unit plan of development or
UP‘-”“"’“ adopled by Lessee and. if required by law l%ﬁprov ed by any govermimental agency, by executing the same upon request
of Lessee. Upon permanent cessation thereol, Lessee terminate the unit by filing of record a wrinen declaration dv.scrlhm" the
unit and stating the date of termination. Pooling hereunder shall nol constitute a cross-conveyanee of interests.

9. Payment Reductions. If Lessor owns less than the full mineral estate in all or any part of the Leased Premises, payment af
rovalties and shut-in royalties hescunder shall be reduced as follows: rovaltics and shut-in royalties for any well ort any part of the
l.eased Peemises or lands pooled therewith shadl be reduced (o the proportion that Lessor’s interest in such part of the Leased Premises
bears 10 the full mineral estate in such part of the Leased Premises. To the extent any royalty or other payment attribulzble to the
mineral estate covered by this lease is payable to someone other than Lessor, such rayalty or other paywent shall be deducted from the
corresponding amount otherwise payable to Lessor hereunder.

10.  Ownership Changes. The interest of either Lessor or Lessee hereunder may be assigned. devised or otherwise transferred in
whole or in part. by area andfor by depth or zone, and the rights and obligations of the parties hereunder shall extend to their
respective heirs. devisees, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, No change in Lessor’s ownership shall have the etfect of
reducing the rights or enlarging the obligations of Lessee hereunder. and no change in ownership shall be binding on Lessee until 60
days after Lessee has been furnished the original or duly authenticated copies of the documents establishing such change of ownership
to the satisfaction of Lessee or until Lessor has satistied the notification requirements contained in Lessee’s usual form of division
arder. In the event of the death of any person entitled lo shut-in royaluies hereunder. Lessee may pay or tender such shut-in royaltics o
the credit of decedent or decedent’s estate. If at any time twe or more persons are entitled to shut-in rayalties hereunder, Lessee may
pay or lender such shut-in royallies to such persons either jointly or separately in proportion 1o the interest which each owns. If Lessex
transfers its interest hereunder in whole or in part Lessee shall be relieved of all obligations thereafter arising with respect to the
transferred interest. and failure of the transteree to sausfy such obligations with respect to the transferred interest shall not aftect the
rishts of Lessee with respect to any interest not se ransferred. 1t Lesses transfers a full or undivided interest in all or any portion of
the area covered by this lease, the obligation to pay or tender shut-in royalties hereunder shall be divided between Lessee and the
transferee in proportion to the net acreage intergst in this lease then held by each.

11, Releasc of Lease. Lessee may. at any time and from time o time. deliver 10 Lessor or lile of record a written release of this
lease as to a full or undivided interest in all or any portion of the area covered by this lease or any depths or zones thercunder. and
shall thercupon be relieved of all obligations therealier arising with respect to the interest so released. [f Lessee releases less than afl off
the interest or area covered hereby. Lessee’s obligation to pay or tender shul-in royallies shalt be proportionately reduced in
aceordance with the net acreage interest retained hereunder.

12. Regulation and Delay. Lessee’s ebligations under this lease, whether express or implied. shull be subject to 2l applicable
laws. rules, regulations and orders of any govemmental autharity having jurisdiction. including restrictions on the drilling and
production of weils, and regulation of the price or transperiation of oil. gas and other substances covered hereby. When drilling.
reworking. production or other operations are prevented or delayed by such faws, rules. regulations or orders. or by inabilily to obain
necessary permits. equipment, services, material. water, electricity, fuel, access or easements, or by fire, lload. adverse weather
conditions. war. sabotage, rebellion. insurrection. riot. strike or labor disputes, or by inability to obtain a satistactory market for
production or lailure ol purchasers or carricrs 10 take or transpon such production. or by any olher cause not reasonably within
Lessee’s cuntrol, this lease shali not terminate because of such prevention or delay, and. at Lessee’s option. the period of such
prevention or delay shall be added 1o the term hereol. Lessee shall not be liable for breach of any provisions or implied covenants of
this lease when drilling, production or other operations are 5o prevented or delayed.

13.  Breach or Default. No litigation shall be mxtrml;l by Lessor for damages. forfeiture or cancellation with respect to any breach
or default by Lessce hereunder, for a period ofwi-bewst ¥ days afler Lessor has given Lessee wrilten notice Tully desceribing the breach
or default. and then only if Lessee fails 1o remedy the breach or default within such period. In the event the malter is Img:-.lul and there
is a fnal judicial determination that a breach or derault bas occurred. this lease shall nat be Torfeited or cancedled in whele or in part

unless Lessee is given a wasanalde Sare arier said judicial determination Lo remedy the breach or default and Lessee fails w do so.
= ;m*"ywwc/q 'f’f”
14. Title. Lessor hereby wm»mw-wﬂ it corveyethii-lurmotioreridesamd agrees that Lessee ar Lessee’s

opuon may pay and discharge any taxes, murigages ot liens existing, levied or assessed on or against the Leased Premises. If Lossee
exercises such option, Lessee shall be subronaud to the rights of the party 10 whom payment is made. and. in addition to its other
nehts, may reimmburse itself out of any rayalties ar shut-in royalties atherwise payable to Lessor hereunder. hretheeropitomico—t
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this leasc is executed to be effective as of the date first written above. but upon execution shall be
binding on the signatory and the signalory’s heirs. devisees. executors, administrators. successors and assigns. whether or not this
lease has been executed by all parties hereinabove named as L.essor,

LLESSORS:

Yates Brothers. a Parinership

By: Yates Private Equity |1 LLP. Partner

By:

John A, Yates. Jr.

Title: Manager

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

NOTE:
The following forms of acknowledgment are the short forms approved by the Uniform Law on Notorial Acts. The validity

and effect of these forms in any state will depend upon the statutes of the state,

Individual Acknowledgment

STATE OF )
1§ ss
COUNTY OF }
The foregoing insoument was acknowiedged before me this day of . 2014, by Jghn_A. Yates. Jr.. as

Manager of Yates Brothers, a Partnership. a New Mexico Partnership.

Natary Public

My Commission Expires:




EXHIBIT A

ATTACHED AND MADE A PART OF THAT CERTAIN OIL AND GAS LEASE DATED THE DAY OF
, 2014 BETWEEN YATES BROTHERS, A PARTNERSHIP, AS LESSOR AND SOVEREIGN

EXPLORATION COMPANY LLC, AS LESSEE.

15. Notwithstanding any other provisions hereof, at the end of the primary term, all acreage not
included in a proration unit as designated by the New Mexico Oil Conservation Division shall be
automatically eliminated from this Lease and revert to LESSOR, unless LESSEE is drilling a well on the
leased premises or on lands pooled therewith, in which event the tease will be held in its entirety as
long as not more than one hundred eighty (180) days elapse between the completion of one well and
the commencement of another. Completion shall be defined as (1) the date on which a dry hole is
plugged or (2} the date certified to the New Mexico Oil Conservation Division as the date a well has been
completed as a producing well, whichever be appropriate. “Commencement” shall be defined as the
date drilling operations are commenced on the feased premises or on fands pooled therewith. At the
end of the continuous drilling program, if any, this lease will automatically terminate as to all lands
covered hereby which have not been so fully developed and as to lands so fully developed shall
terminate as to all depths lying more than 100" below the total depth drilied.

16. Lessor shal! receive all well information and/or data including daily drilling reports at the same time
and manner as the working interest owners obtain their information. Lessor shall receive one copy of all
such information and/or data. Lessor shall also timely receive all title opinions such as but not limited to
Drilling Title Opinions, Division Order Title Opinions and any amendments, supplements and/or
corrections related thereto such documents and covering any portion of the leased lands or lands
pooled therewith.

17. Lessee shall within 60 days after its receipt submit to Lessor one county recorded copy of this oil and
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

18. tessor conveys no warranties of any kind, express or implied.

END OF EXHIBIT A

an



Grace Charboneau

om: Grace Charboneau [gcharboneau@stratanm.com]
‘ent: Friday, October 24, 2014 2:28 PM
To: ‘Jim Ball'
Cc: 'Mitch Krakauskas'
Subject: RE: Counter on Tule Field OGL of Sovereign.
Attachments: Yates Brothers Lease Revised 10-24-14.doc; image001.png
Mr. Jim,

Attached is the revised lease with your changes and our changes. Please review the changes and let me know if you
have any questions.

Also, Mitch would like to speak to you tomorrow sometime about the lease. !f you can please give me your cell number
or will call Mitch on his at {575) 420-1181, | would greatly appreciate it.

Thank you for your help. Have a good day and great weekend.

Grace Charboneau
Division Order Analyst

Sovereign Exploration Company, L.L.C.
P.O. Box 968 )

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
get him to agree but the lease form is VIP too. Using your lease form messed up the normal way we do things in
presenting ...one of the reasons | did not want to use it. Honestly going out the door now.

Jim Ball
Landman

Yates Holdings LLP
. 0. Box 1394
rtesia, NM 88211-1394

‘Direct Phone: (575) 736-8572



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

Mr.Jim,
I'm sorry to hear about the loss of your friend. Our condolences to you.

As far as the length, this is something that you have revised on our lease form to three years. Sovereign is fine with the
three year term. [ would assume since you revised it to that, it was an acceptable term when you sent it back to me with
the revisions.

With the bonus and royalty, we have leased the majority of the other mineral owners with the same terms that we are
offering Yates Brothers. We do not feel it is fair or ethical to offer you a higher rate of bonus or royalty. | honestly

.ould not feel right to offer a higher royalty rate or higher bonus. We are trying to keep everyone equal. We feel that
“very royalty owner is just as important as the other one. If you can please tell me why Yates Brothers minerals are
warth more than the other mineral owners, | would love to listen and entertain the reasoning and offer. Sovereign
wants every mineral owner to be treated equally and fairly. Itis only right for everyone to be offered the same royalty
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
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From: Jim Ball [mailto:jimb@yatesholdings.com])
ient: Thursday, October 23, 2014 2:52 PM

: grace@stratanm.com
subject: RE: Counter on Tule Field OGL of Sovereign.



That will be fine. | still do not know if the terms will be accepted in terms of bonus, length and royalty but for sure we
need to have a good lease form. | am leaving for the funeral in 10 minutes but will be here on Monday mid morn.
Thanks. Have a good day.

im Ball
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
Sent: Thursday, October 23, 2014 2:51 PM
To: 'Jim Ball
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

ubject: RE: Counter on Tule Field OGL of Sovereign.




Grace, | have gone over the Sovereign lease form with Mr. Yates. Please see the requested changes that are attached
and note the exhibit A that is also attached. Let use this rough amend version to settle our differences if that is possible.
You may be able to read the hand writing better if blown up. If not let me know and | can read it to you in certain
stances. Note that the last sentence of paragraph 14 which | crossed our | do have flexibility in what we can accept. 1
ink the wording could be left in if it had a sentence added afterwards that said the interest would not be unreasonably
neld in suspense.

If we do not settle the differences then we know if will be force pooled. | however would have to ask for a continuance
because of several follow-up medical appointments that | cannot miss in Oklahoma City on October 30th. If it had to be
continued then | will also not be able to attend a hearing on November 17" and 18 due to appearing as a witness in
Federal Court in Albuguergue.

I will be leaving for Santa Barbara, California on this Thursday afternoon to attend a funeral of a friend of mine and Mark
Murphy’s {(Jim Dawson}. 1 will return on Monday mid-day so if we can get this resolved before | leave that would be
great.

Jim Ball
Landman

Yates Holdings LLP

P. 0. Box 1394

Artesia, NM 88211-1394

Direct Phone: (575) 736-8572
lain Phone: (575) 736-8575

-ax: (875) 736-8577

Email: imb@vyatesholdings.com

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

From. Grace Charboneau [mallto gcharboneau@stratanm com]
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
the lease if at all possible.

urrently, we have several hundreds of different mineral owners that are currently on the tease form that we presented
you. We would like to continue to use our tease form at this time. f you would like to change the lease form that |

sent to you around, then | would be more than happy to present it to Mitch at that time. Without knowing for sure

4



what you do not like about our lease form, it is hard to know if we can work with it or not. | know that itisa’
tremendous amount of work for you and [ apologize for that, but please take a moment to try to do the changes to the
form that | sent to you please.

he title opinion is something that is provided to working interest owners because it is paid for by the working interests
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
would be campletely your choice on what you would like to do.

I truly wish | could offer more than the 1/6 royalty and the $25.00 per net mineral acre, but as we are all aware of the
issues we have in that area, it is difficult for production alone. If | could offer more like we could in the Permian Basin, |
would fove to. The Tule field/Wildcat Area will not allow for it to work for everyone.

Please look at our lease and start doing changes so that | have a place to start. Please let me know if it is just really not
an opinion. We are still planning on going forward with the force pooling that is set at the end of this month.

Thank you for your time,

Grace Charboneau
Division Order Analyst

éovereign Exploration Company, L.L.C.

O. Box 968
oswell, NM 88202
(575) 622-1127 Ext. 20

From: Jim Ball [mailto:jimb@yatesholdings.com]
Sent: Friday, October 17, 2014 2:23 PM
To: grace@stratanm.com

Subject: counter Tule Field

Grace,

The Sovereign lease has too many changes. Don t have time to change ...that would take too long..... 1 do not like it ... It
is the worst | have ever seen in my career and | cannot in good conscience put it in front of the Yates and say sign it. It
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
processing and ! will run it by the Yates for approval. (Fingers crossed.) We can argue all day about the fact that title
opinions are given to Wi owners but | agree with that statement because they pay for it. EQUALLY AS COMMON AS
THAT IS THE FACT THAT industry royalty owners require the same thing in their standard lease forms and that is what
he Yates family is requiring just like all the other industry royalty owners.



Try getting a lease without giving a TO and well info from the Cowdens, Scarburoughs, DK Boyd, Everett Haley, Andy
Grooms, Featherstones, Tom and Tim Jennings to name a few. Yes we will be a royalty owner but this will be a condition
of the lease......and such a condition or request is normal for an industry royalty owner such as Murphy to ask for it.

.inal point, Murphy Oit Corp. has required it of me in the past | am 99% sure of it. Look at it this way too. | can flip it to

PC or another party and they then give Sovereign a farmout agreement ..... such a title opinion and well data would

also be normal in the requirement of the farmout agreement ....... So does Sovereign want to deal with another party in
negotiating a FO Agreement? Probably not. | hope we can agree to get the T.O. topic resolved in about one second
and move on to the more important issues of the wording of the processing the gas etc.

It will cost Sovereign 2 minutes of time and about $3.00 of ink to satisfy this issue. | further would see it as a courtesy
when Sovereign is offering only $25.00 per net acre and 1/6 royalty on a field that is has been producing for 30 years.

I am late leaving town and am going out the door. Thasnk.

Jim Ball
Landman

Yates Holdings LLP
P. 0. Box 1394
Artesia, NM 88211-1394
Direct Phone: {575) 736-8572
Main Phone: (575) 736-8575
Fax: {575) 736-8577

.mail: jimb@yatesholdings.com

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

- - e e i amas mame u fmrrm e am as sear et an & ol = s am e ae v e -

From: Grace Charboneau [mailto:gcharboneau@stratanm.com]
Sent: Friday, October 17, 2014 1:00 PM

To: 'Jim Ball'
Sgbject': RE: Looks like I misspelled Sovereign's name on the Exhbit A header. I will change that.

Mr. Jim,

f spoke to Mitch again about the title opinions and the drilling opinions. He basically said that we would provide you

with a copy of your section of the title opinion as a royalty owner. The full title opinion will not be provided to a royalty

owner because the royalty owner was not helping pay for the title opinion cost. Also, in the past, you might have been

working for a participant in the well and that is why you may not have had a problem getting the copy of the title

apinion in the past.

| have attached a copy of the original lease that was sent to you. If you don't mind, please go through and do the

changes in our lease that you do not like and add the things that are important to you in. Mitch might come off on some
f the things in the lease, but i cannot promise anything. The document is set up to where it will track changes as you
pe or delete. If you can do this, maybe we might be a step closer to putting this to bed.

Thank you for your help. Have a great day.



Grace Charboneau
‘ivision Order Analyst

Sovereign Exploration Company, L.L.C.
P.O. Box 968

Roswell, NM 88202

(575) 622-1127 Ext. 20

From- J|m Ball [malltg ]|mb@yateshoid|ngs com]
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

Yates Holdmgs LLP

0. Box 1394
\rtesia, NM 88211-1394
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
e-mail transmission. If verification is required please request a hard-copy version,



PRODUCERS 88-PAID UP
Revised

OIL AND GAS LEASE

’lIS LEASE AGREEMENT is made as of the 21th day of August 2014.between Yates Brothers, a Partnership, whose address is

O Box 1394, Artesia, NM_88211 as Lessor (whether one or more), and Sovereign Exploration Company, LL.C, whose address is
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
| Section 26: N/2, SE/4 SE/4

these lands being located in the County of Roosevelt, State of New Mexico, containing 23.7092 net acres, whether it actually
comprises more or less (including any interests therein which Lessor may hereafter acquire by reversion, prescription, or re-survey,-of
otherwise), for the purpose of exploring for, developing, producing and marketing oil and gas, along with all hydrocarbon products
and by-products and non- hydrocarbon substances produced in assocnatlon therewith ( Oll and Gas Substances”) fl:hqs—lease-ake

: The term ¢ gas” as used herein includes hellum carbon
dioxide, gaseous sulfur compounds, methane produced from coal formations and other commercial gases, as well as normal
hydrocarbon gases. [n addition to the above-described land, this lease and the term “Leased Premises” also covers accretions and
strips-or-parcels—ofland-now—or-hereafter-ewned-by-Lessor which are contiguous or adjacent to the above-described land, and, in
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

2 Consideration. In exchange for Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable consideration, the terms of which shall
remain confidential, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Lessor hereby conveys and exchanges this
reement.

Ancillary Rights. The rights granted to Lessee hereunder shall include the right of ingress and egress on the Leased Premises or
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
water produced from the Leased Premises or ‘other lands that share central facilities and are jointly operated with the Leased Premises
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
and to commercial timber and growing crops thereon. Lessee shall have the right at any time to remove its fixwres, equipment and
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
seismic data acquisition, cross-well seismic data acquisition, well logging and data acquisition, airborne, gravity and/or other remote
sensing data acquisition for the term of the lease; and

‘ b) to the extent Lessor owns or controls surface rights, grants a surface permit for entry, exit, egress for all exploration and
rilling purposes, including but ~ not limited to surface seismic data acquisition, cross-well seismic data acquisition, well logging
and data acquisition, airborne, gravity, and /or other remote  sensing data acquisition for the term of the lease; and

¢) to the extent Lessor owns or controls surface rights, grants rights-of-way for entry, exit and egress for all exploration,
drilling and development purposes including but not limited to surface vehicles, clectrification, oil and gas pipeline, and all related
producing infrastructure. .

l 4  Term of Lease. This lease shall be in force for a primary term of five(8)- three (3) years from the date hereof, and for as long
thereafter as oil or gas or other substances covered hereby are produced from the Leased Premises or from lands pooled or unitized

thereWJth or Ihls lease is OtherW]SL mamtamed in effect pursuant to the provisions hercof. l:essee—!s—hmby-‘mﬂen—the—epﬂea—wbe




Q Operations. If Lessee drills a well which Lessee determines. is uneconomic (hereinafter called “dry hole”) on the Leased

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
contrary, Lessee shall not be required to drill additional wells or produce Oil and Gas Substances from existing wells that in-Lessee's
sele-opinien_in Lessee's sole opinion are uneconomic or inadequately priced in the market. As used herein, the term Operations shall
mean any activity conducted on or off the Leased Premises that is reasonably calculated to obtain or restore production, including
withent-Hmitatien, (i) drilling or any act preparatory to drilling (such as obtaining permits, surveying a drill site, staking a drill site,
building roads, clearing a drill site, or hauling equipment or supplies); (ii) reworking, hydraulic fracturing, plugging back, deepening,
treating, testing, stimulating, refitting, installing any artificial lift or production-enhancement equipment or technique;
(iii) constructing facilities related to the production, treatment, transportation and marketing of substances produced from the lease
premises; (iv) contracting for marketing services and sale of Oil and Gas Substances; and (v) construction of water disposal facilities
and the physical movement of water produced from the Leased Premises.

6.  Shut-in Royalty. If at any time when this lease is not validated by other provisions hereof and there is a gas and/or oil well on
said land, or land pooled therewith, but gas or oil is not being so sold or used and such well is shut in, either before or after production
erefrom, then on or before 180 days after said well is shut in, and thereafter at annual intervals, lessee may pay or tender an advance
ut-in royalty equal to $1.00 per net acre of lessor's gas acreage then held under this lease by the party making such payment or
tender, and so long as said shut-in royalty is paid or tendered, this lease shall not terminate and it shall be considered under all clauses
hereof that gas is being produced from the leased premises in paying quantities. Each such payment shall be paid or tendered to the
party or parties who at the time of such payment would be entitled to receive the royalties which would be paid under this lease if the

| well were in fact producing. The payment or tender of royalties and shut-in royalties may_shall be made by check.-erdraft: Any
timely payment or tender of shut-in royalty which is made in a bona fide attempt to make proper payment, but which is erroneous in
whole or in part as to parties or amounts, shall nevertheless be sufficient to prevent termination of this lease in the same manner as

| though a proper payment had been made if lessee shall correct such error within 9018-days 60 days after lessee has received written
notice thereof by certified mail from the party or parties entitled to receive payment together with such written instruments (or
certified copies thereof) as are necessary to enable lessee to make proper payment. The amount realized from the sale of oil or gas on
or off the premises shall be the price established by the sales contract entered into in good faith by lessee and purchaser for such term
and under such conditions as are customary in the industry. "Price” shall mean the net amount received by lessee after giving effect to

apphcablc regulatory ordersw%%m%%m%&%&mmmm&w%em@m

- orders. Lessee s fallure
to properly pay shut-in royalty shall render Lessee liable for the amount due, but shall not operate to tenmnate this lease_if the error to
correct the issue was timely corrected.

7. Royalty Payment. For all Oil and Gas Substances that are physically produced from the Leased Premises, or lands pooled,

unitized or communitized therewith, and sold, lessor shall receive as its royalty one-sixth (1/6th) of the sales proceeds actually
recewed by Lessee or, if apphcable its aff‘ hate asa resulz of the f“ st sale of the affected productron to an unaff hated party —!esHhﬁ

all Post Production Costs and this same gelcentage share of all groductlon, severance and ad v1lorem taxes As used in thls provision,

Post Production Costs shall mean all costs aclually incurred by Lessee or its affiliate and all losses of produced volumes whether by

use as fuel, line loss, flarine, venting or otherwise from and afier the wellhead to the point of sale. These costs include without
limitation, all costs of gathering, marketing, compression, dehydration, transportation, removal of liguid or gaseous_substances or
impurities from the affected production. and any other weatment or processing required by the first unaffiliated party who purchases

the affected production. For royalty calculation purposes, Lessee shall never be required to adjust the sales proceeds to aceount for the

purchaser's costs or charges downstream of the point of sale.
b

Lessee or its affiliate shall have the right (o construct, maintain and operate any facilities providing some or all of the services
identified as Post Production Costs. H-this-pecurs—the-actual-costs-ofsuchfaciitiesshall-be-ncluded-inthe RostProduction-Costs-as-a
mﬁmwmmwmmmmmmm

n-volumes-attributable-to-the-wel-orwells-usingsuch-factlities [f'this occurs, the
actual costs of such facilities_shall be included in the Post Production Costs as a_per barrel or per mcf charge, as appropriate.
calculated by spreading the construction, maintenance and operating costs for such facilities over the reasonably estimated total
roduction volumes attributable to the well or wells using such facilities.

Lessee shall have free use of Oil and Gas Substances to assist in producing or enhancing production of Qil and Gas Substances and
Lessor’s royalty shall be computed after deducting any Oil and Gas Substances so used. {f Lessce uses the Oil and Gas Substances
(other than to assist in producing or enhancing production of Oil and Gas Substances or as fuel in connection with the production and
sale thereof) in lieu of receiving sale proceeds, the price to be used under this provision shall be based upon arm's-length sale(s) to



Qafﬁliated parties for the applicable month that are obtainable, comparable in terms of quality and quantity, and in closest proximity
the Leased Premises. Such comparable armi's-length sales price shall be less any Post Production Costs applicable to the specific
arms-length transaction that is utilized. ‘

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
of either, when in Lessee’s judgment it is necessary or advisable to do so, and urrespective of whether authority similar to this exists
with respect to such other land, lease or leases. Likewise, units previously formed to include formations not producing oif or gas, may
be reformed to exclude such non-producing formations. The forming or reforming of any unit shall be accomplished by Lessee
executing and filing of record in the county in which the lease premises are located either before or after completion of well(s) a
declaration of such pooling, unitization or reformation, which declaration shall describe the unit. Any unit may include land upon
which a well has therstofore been completed or upon which operations for drilling have theretofore been commenced. Production,
drilling or reworking operations, or a well shut in for want of a market anywhere on a unit which includes all or a part of this lease,
shall be treated as if it were production, drilling or reworking operations or a well shut in for want of market under this lease. In lieu
of the royalties elsewhere herein specified, including shut-in gas royalties, Lessor shall receive on production from the unit so pooled
" royalties only on the portion of such production that the total number of surface acres covered by this lease and included in the unit
bears to the total number of surface acres in such unit. In addition to the foregoing, Lessee shall have the right but not the obligation
to unitize, pool, or combine all or any part of the above described lands or interest therein as to one or more of the formations
thereunder with other lands in the same general area by entering in one or more cooperative or unit plan of development(s) or
operation {approved by any governmental authority, if required by Jaw) and, from time to time, with like approval if required by law,
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
der any such cooperative or unit plan of development or operation whereby the production therefrom is allocated to different
QIortions of the land covered by said plan, then the production allocated to any particular tract of land shall, for the purpose of
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
of Lessee. Upon permanent cessation thereof, Lessee may shall terminate the unit by filing of record a written declaration describing
the unit and stating the date of termination. Pooling hereunder shall not constitute a cross-conveyance of interests.

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
respective heirs, devisees, executors, administrators, successors and assigns. No-change in Lessor’s ownership shall have the effect of
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

.ights of Lessee with respect to any interest not so transferred. If Lessee transfers a full or undivided interest in all or any portion of
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
shall thereupon be relieved of all obligations thereafter arising with respect to the interest so released. If Lessee releases less than ali of
the interest or area covered hereby, Lessee’s obligation to pay or tender shut-in royalties shall be proportionately reduced in
accordance with the net acreage interest retained hereunder.

2. Regulation and Delay. Lessee’s obligations under this lease, whether express or implied, shall be subject to all applicable
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
conditions, war, sabotage, rebellion, msurrection, riot, strike or labor disputes, or by inability to obtain a satisfactory market for
roduction or failure of purchasers or carriers to take or transport such production, or by any other cause not reasonably within
Lessee’s control, this lease shall not terminate because of such prevention or delay, and, at Lessee’s option, the period of such
prevention or delay shall be added to the term hereof. Lessee shall not be liable for breach of any provisions or implied covenants of
this lease when drilling, production or other operations are so prevented or delayed.



.. Breach or Default. No litigation shall be initiated by Lessor for damages, forfeiture or cancellation with respect to any breach

r defanlt by Lessee hereunder, for a period of atJeast-90 10-days at least 60 days after Lessor has given Lessee written notice fully
describing the breach or default, and then only if Lessee fails to remedy the breach or defauit within such period. In the event the
matter is litigated and there is a final judicial determination that a breach or default has occurred, this lease shall not be forfeited or

| cancelled in whole or in part unless Lessee is given a reasonable-time-a—period-of-10-days _a period of 60 days after said judicial
determination to remedy the breach or default and Lessee fails to do so.

I 14. Title. Lessor hereby warrants—and-agrees-to-defend-title-conveyed-to-besseehereunder—and agrees that Lessee at Lessee’s

option may pay and,discharge any taxes, mortgages or liens existing, levied or assessed on or against the Leased Premises. If Lessee
exercises such option, Lessee shall be subrogated to the rights of the party to whom payment is made, and, in addition to its other
rights, may reimburse itself out of any royalties or shut-in royalties otherwise payable to Lessor hereunder. {a—the-event-Lesseeis
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hereunder~witheut-interest—untiessee—has-been—furnished-satisfactery—evidenee—that-such—¢claim-has—been—reselved_In the event
essee is made aware of any claim inconsistent with Lessor's title, Lessee may suspend the payment of rovalties and shut in royaities

hereunder, without interest, until Lessee has been furnished satifactory evidence that such claim has been resolved.

c = o =i &

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
By: Yates Private Equity [I LLP, Partner

®
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

Yates Private Equity Il LLP, a New Mexico limited liability partnership, tn its capacity as general partner of Yates Brothers, a New
Mexico general partnership, on behalf of said partnership.

My Commission Expires: (Seal, if any)

Notary Public in and for the State of




EXHIBIT A
ATTACHED AND MADE A PART OF THAT CERTAIN OIL AND GAS LEASE DATED THE

DAY OF. .2014 BETWEEN YATES BROTHERS, A PARTNERSHIP, AS
LESSOR AND'SOVERIEGN EXPLORATION COMPANY LI.C, AS LESSEE.

.1415. Lessee shall within 60 days after its receipt sub
lease document. aa-shall re {

arden tha on beies B0 Aoxr aaca Nf Al and o o
ooy d - 2

mit to Lessor one county recorded copv of this oil and gas

1816. Lessor conveys no warranties of any kind. express or implied.

END OF EXHIBIT A




Grace Charboneau

om: ' Jim Ball [imb@yatesholdings.com]
‘nt: Tuesday, October 28, 2014 5:19 PM
- To: grace@stratanm.com
Subject: RE: Tule Field gas and the oil marketing infrastructure
Attachments: image001.png

I am pretty sure that most of these questions will have the same answers but had to separate out in case | was wrong in
my assumption. It really should not be that big of a task as I think it will be repetitive answers to the questions since the
wells are in the same field and adjacent to each other. We have been netted and the Yates want to know the detail of
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

‘mail: jimb@yatesholdings.com

This message may contain confidential information and is intended for the named recipient only. If you are not the
intended recipient you are notified that disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in reliance on the contents
of this information is strictly prohibited.- E-mail transmission cannot be guaranteed to be secure or error-free as
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

To: Jim Ball

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

ﬁovereign Exploration Company, L.L.C.

.0. Box 968
Roswell, NM 88202



(575) 622-1127 Ext. 20

From: Jim Ball [rrjaiIto:iimb@vatesholdinqs.com]
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

If applicable, is fuel from the lease being used in its operations? If so, is the fuel staying on the lease or is it being used

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
‘applicable, is there a treating deduction and if so who is that being paid to? How much are they charging?

E there any other cost associated with the production and extraction of minerals that are being deducted from the

royalty owners and if so what are they and who is being paid? How much are they charging?

Also, what taxes are being withheld and if state tax is being withheld why are they?

Will additional wells in the Tule field be subject to EXACTLY the same existing charges and EXACTLY the same Revised
Division Order and Marketing Agreement that was executed earlier this year on the Cook #1, Wendell Best #1, )T McGee
Com #1 and the Perry #1? If not, how will it be different?

Thanks.

Yates Holdings LLP
P. 0. Box 1394

Artesia, NM 88211-1394
Direct Phone: (575) 736-8572
Main Phone: (575) 736-8575

ax: (575) 736-8577
ail: imb@vatesholdings.com




This message may contain confidential information and is intended for the named recipient only. If you are not the
intended recipient you are notified that disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in reliance on the contents
of this information is strictly prohibited. E-mail transmission cannot be guaranteed to be secure or error-free as
ormation could be intercepted, corrupted, lost, destroyed, arrive late or incomplete, or contain viruses. The sender
erefore does not accept liability for any errors or omissions in the contents of this message, which arise as a resuit of
~ e-mail transmission. If verification is required please request a hard-copy version.



Grace Charboneau

‘om: Mitch Krakauskas [mkrakauskas@stratanm.com]

nt: Tuesday, November 04, 2014 8:04 AM
To: grace@stratanm.com
Subject: | FW: Tule Field gas and the oil marketing infrastructure
Attachments: image001.png

Mitch Krakauskas, RPL

Strata Production Company

From: Mitch Krakauskas [mailto:mkrakauskas@stratanm.com}
Sent: Thursday, October 30, 2014 11:08 AM

To: 'jimb@yatesholdings.com'

Subject: RE: Tule Field gas and the oil marketing infrastructure

Jim-
Grace has forwarded on your request. I will get with management and get these answered for you at our earliest
convenience.

Thank you,

.litch Krakauskas, RPL
wtrata Production Company
w. 575.622.1127 ext.23
m. 575.420.1181
e. mkrakauskas@stratanm.com

From: Grace Charboneau [mailto:gcharboneau@stratanm.com]
Sent: Tuesday, October 28, 2014 4:43 PM

To: 'Mitch Krakauskas'

Subject: FW: Tule Field gas and the oil marketing infrastructure

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
ow many hydrocarbon products are being processed? Who are the purchasers of the various individual products?

pplicable, who is the processor...or “Processing Company”? How much are they charging?
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
if applicable, who is the compression deduction being paid to? How much are they charging?

pplicable, who is the dehydration deduction being paid to? How much are they charging?

applicable, is thére a gathering charge and if so who is that being paid to? How much are they charging?

If applicable, is there a processing deduction and if so who is that being paid to? How much are they charging?
If applicable, is there a treating deduction and if so who is that being paid to? How much are they charging?
is there any other'cost associated with the production and extraction of minerals that are being deducted from the
royalty owners and if so what are they and who is being paid? How much are they charging?
Also, what taxes are being withheld and if state tax is being withheld why are they?

Will additional wells in the Tule field be subject to EXACTLY the same existing charges and EXACTLY the same Revised
Division Order and Marketing Agreement that was executed earlier this year on the Cook #1, Wendell Best #1, IT McGee
Com #1 and the Perry #17? If not, how will it be different?

Thanks.

Jim Ball
Landman.

Yates Holdings LLP
P.0.Box 1394
Qtesia, NM 88211-1394
irect Phone: (575} 736-8572
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
information could be intercepted, corrupted, lost, destroyed, arrive fate or incomplete, or contain viruses. The sender
therefore does not accept liability for any errors or omissions in the contents of this message, which arise as a result of
e-mail transmission. If verification is required please request a hard-copy version.



Grace Charbolneau

om: Mitch Krakauskas [mkrakauskas@stratanm.com)
‘nt: Tuesday, November 04, 2014 8:04 AM
To: grace@stratanm.com
Subject: FW: Counter on Tule Field OGL of Sovereign.
Attachments: image001.png

Mitch Krakal!lskas, RPL

Strata Production Company

From: Mitch Krakauskas [mailto:mkrakauskas@stratanm.com]
Sent: Thursday, October 30, 2014 2:51 PM

To: 'jimb@yatesholdings.com’

Subject: RE: Counter on Tule Field OGL of Sovereign.

Jim-

Even though both of us have tried to negotiate the terms of this lease in good faith, it looks as though we will
not be able to come to an agreement. Unfortunately, the terms of your lease form for Yates Brothers are
incompatible with our needs and the terms of our 40+ other leases. I think our best course of action is to let this

20 to the hearing and discuss it at that time.
.t this time, I feel it is best to defer all future communication through our respective counsel.

Thank you again for your time and effort on this.

Mitch Krakauskas, RPL
Strata Production Company
w, 575.622.1127 ext.23

m. 575.420.1181

€. mkrakauskas@stratanm.com

From: Jim Ball [mailto: jiimb@yatesholdings.com]
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

r apart on what(is a reasonable offer using your form and terms. Respectfully I/we do not agree with your claims for
fering terms th:?t in your opinion are reasonable and fair. We will remain hopeful that we can work things out and |

have given indicaTions to you both of how | think it could be best accomplished.

f



Jim Ball |

Landman

Yates Holdings LL:P
P.0O.Box 1394
Artesia, NM 88212}-1394

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
e-mail transmission. If verification is required please reguest a hard-copy version. :

From: Grace Charboneau [mailto:gcharboneauv@stratanm.com]
Sent: Friday, October 24, 2014 2:28 PM

To: Jim Ball'
.:: 'Mitch Krakauskas'
ubject: RE: Counter on Tule Field OGL of Sovereign.

Mr. Jim,
Attached is the revised lease with your changes and our changes. Please review the changes and let me know if you
have any questions.

Also, Mitch would like to speak to you tomorrow sometime about the lease. Hf you can please give me your cell number
or will call Mitch on his at (575) 420-1181, { would greatly appreciate it.

Thank you for your help. Have a good day and great weekend.

Grace Charboneau
Division Order Analyst

Sovereign Exploration Company, L.L.C.
P.O. Box 968

Roswell, NM 88202

(5758) 622-1127 Ext. 20

Qom: Jim Ball [n%ailto:‘imb atesholdings.com]
ent: Thursday, October 23, 2014 3:31 PM

{



To: grace@stratanm.com
Subject: RE: Cou:nter on Tule Field OGL. of Sovereign.

|
.mning late out ﬁhe door. As to the terms | have gone over the lease with Mr. Yates and these are those are the things
vithin your lease form we want changed if we use your lease form. Your marketing charges effect the net royalty we
receive and thus I\|/lr. Yates wants me to come back to him to see what you agree to change or not and he will be the one
that decides what he will accept or not after seeing the changes....not me. As | said in an earlier email { will do my best to
get him to agree but the lease form is VIP too. Using your lease form messed up the normal way we do things in

presenting ...one ?f the reasons | did not want to use it. Honestly going out the door now.

Jim Ball |
Landman t

Yates Holdings LLP

P. Q. Box 1394

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

From: Grace Charboneau [mailto:acharboneau@stratanm.com]
Sent: Thursday, October 23, 2014 3:25 PM

To: Jim Ball'

Subject: RE: Counter on Tule Field OGL of Sovereign.

Mr. Jim, .
I'm sorry to hear about the loss of your friend. Qur condolences to you.

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
worth more thanithe other mineral owners, | would love to listen and entertain the reasoning and offer. Sovereign
ants every mineral owner to be treated equally and fairly. it is only right for everyone to be offered the same royalty
dte and bonus p%ayment terms to lease their mineral interest.

' will get the revisions to you first thing in the morning.



Thank you for your quick response. Be careful in your travels. Have a fantastic evening.

.\:race Charboneau

Division Order Analyst

Sovereign Exploration Company, L.L.C.

P.0O. Box 968

Roswell, NM 88202

(575) 622-1127 Ext. 20
|

From: Jim Ball [mailto:iimb@yatesholdings.com]
Sent: Thursday, October 23, 2014 2:52 PM

To: grace@stratanm.com

Subject: RE: Counter on Tule Field OGL of Sovereign.

That will be fine. 1 still do not know if the terms will be accepted in terms of bonus, length and royalty but for sure we
need to have a good lease form. | am leaving for the funeral in 10 minutes but will be here on Monday mid morn.

Thanks. Have a good day.

lim Ball
Landman

SHOLDINGS

Yates Holdings LLP

P.O.Box 1394

Artesia, NM 88211-1394

Direct Phone: {575) 736-8572
Main Phone: (575) 736-8575
Fax: (575) 736-8577

Email: imb@yatesholdings.com

This message may contain confidential information and is intended for the named recipient only. {f you are not the
intended recipient you are notified that disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in reliance on the contents
of this infarmation is strictly prohibited. E-mail transmission cannot be guaranteed to be secure or error-free as
information could be intercepted, corrupted, fost, destroyed, arrive late or incomplete, or contain viruses. The sender
therefore does not accept liability for any errors or omissions in the contents of this message, which arise as a result of-
e-mail transmission. If verification is required please request a hard-copy version.

From: Grace Chafrboneau [maitto:gcharboneau@stratanm.com}

Sent: Thursday, October 23, 2014 2:51 PM
To: 'Jim Ball'
Subject: RE: COl}mter on Tule Field OGL of Sovereign.

r. Jim, ‘



| am currently wquing on the revisions that you requested and also placing Mitch's revision and what will be accepted
and not. [should have this done by Friday and it will be waiting on you to see if it is acceptable or not.
Have a great day.

race Charboneau
Division Order Analyst

Sovereign Exploration Company, L.L.C.
£.0. Box 968

Roswell; NM 88202

(675) 622-1127 Ext. 20

From: Jim Ball [mailto:jimb@yatesholdings.com]
Sent: Tuesday, October 21, 2014 2:43 PM

To: grace@stratanm.com
Subject: RE: Counter on Tule Field OGL of Sovereign.

Grace, 1have gone over the Sovereign lease form with Mr. Yates. Please see the requested changes that are attached
and note the exhibit A that is also attached. Let use this rough amend version to settle our differences if that is possible.
You may be able to read the hand writing better if blown up. If not let me know and | can read it to you in certain
instances. Note that the last sentence of paragraph 14 which | crossed our t do have flexibility in what we can accept. |
think the wording could be left in if it had a sentence added afterwards that said the interest would not be unreasonably
held in suspense.

.; we do not settle the differences then we know if will be force pooled. | however would have to ask for a continuance
ecause of several follow-up medical appointments that | cannot miss in Oklahoma City on October 30th. If it had to be
continued then | will also not be able to attend a hearing on November 17" and 18 due to appearing as a witness in-

Federal Court in Albuquerque.

| will be leaving for Santa Barbara, California on this Thursday afternoon to attend a funeral of a friend of mine and Mark
Murphy’s (Jim Dawson). | will return on Monday mid-day so if we can get this resolved before | leave that would be
great.

Jim Bal!
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
.ntended recipient you are notified that disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in reliance on the contents
of this information is strictly prohibited. E-mail transmission cannot be guaranteed to be secure or error-free as
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information could be intercepted, corrupted, lost, destroyed, arrive late or incomplete, or contain viruses. The sender
therefore does nl'ot accept liability for any errors or omissions in the contents of this message, which arise as a result of
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
Well { hope youritravels were good and safe last week. It is always nice to get out of town to get a change of scenery.

Thank you for your response to my previous email and phone calls. | would love to still try to reach an agreement on -
the lease if at all;possible.

Currently, we have several hundreds of different mineral owners that are currently on the lease form that we presented
to you. We would like to continue to use our lease form at this time. If you would like to change the lease form that |
sent to you around, then | would be more than happy to present it to Mitch at that time. Without knowing for sure
what you do not like about our lease form, itis hard to know if we can work with it or not. 1 know thatitisa
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

.We are offering for Yates Brothers or any another party mineral owner to become a working interest owner if they
wish. {f you choose to do a farmout agreement to YPC, that might be a good opinion for Yates Brothers. However, the
farmout agreement is your choice. We are not going to tell you one way or the other on what you should do. This
would be completely your choice on what you would like to do.

I truly wish | could offer more than the 1/6 royalty and the $25.00 per net mineral acre, but as we are all aware of the
issues we have in that area, it is difficuit for production alone. [f | could offer more like we could in the Permian Basin, |
would Jove to. The Tule field/Wildcat Area will not allow for it to work for everyone.

Please look at our fease and start doing changes so that | have a place to start. Please let me know if it is just really not
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

P.O.Box 968 |
Roswell, NM 88202
(575) 622-1127 Ext. 20



From: Jim Ball [mailto: jimb@yatesholdings.com]
Sent: Friday, October 17, 2014 2:23 PM

To: grace@stratanm.com

ubject: counter Tule Field

Grace,

The Sovereign lease has too many changes. Don t have time to change ...that would take too long..... | do not like it ... 1t
is the worst | have ever seen in my career and | cannot in good conscience put it in front of the Yates and say sign it. it
would take ups t&) many hours or days of negotiating back and forth and | do not believe some issues would be solvable
if Soveriegn cannot even agree to tet us have a copy of title opinions for our files. The lease form { am presenting to
Sovereign as a co:unter is a lease form that probably works for everyone in the Permian..and beyond. No one yet has -
had a problem with it that | have found. Mitch needs to get me the wording that he is concerned with on the gas
processing and | will run it by the Yates for approval. (Fingers crossed.) We can argue all day about the fact that title
opinions are given to Wi owners but [ agree with that statement because they pay for it. EQUALLY AS COMMON AS
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

Final point, Murphy Qil Corp. has required it of me in the past | am 95% sure of it. Look at it this way too. | can flipit to
YPC or another party and they then give Sovereign a farmout agreement ... such a title opinion and well data would
also be normal in the requirement of the farmout agreement ....... So does Sovereign want to deal with another party in
negotiating a FO Agreement? Probably not. | hope we can agree to get the T.O. topic resolved in about one second
and move on to the more important issues of the wording of the processing the gas etc.

t will cost Sovereign 2 minutes of time and about $3.00 of ink to satisfy this issue. | further would see it as a courtesy
when Sovereign is offering only $25.00 per net acre and 1/6 royaity on a field that is has been producing for 30 years.

| am late leaving town and am going out the door.  Thasnk.

Jim Ball
Landman

VATES

3~"HOLDINGS

Yates Holdings LLP

P. 0. Box 1394

Artesia, NM 88211-1394

Direct Phone: {575) 736-8572
Main Phone: (575) 736-8575
Fax: (575) 736-8577

Email: imb@yatesholdings.com

This message ma:y contain confidential information and is intended for the named recipient only. If you are not the
intended recipient you are notified that disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in reliance on the contents
of this informatien is strictly prohibited. E-mail transmission cannot be guaranteed to be secure or error-free as
information could be intercepted, corrupted, lost, destroyed, arrive late or incomplete, or contain viruses. The sender
herefore does not accept liability for any errors or omissions in the contents of this message, which arise as a result of

e-mail transmission. If verification is required please request a hard-copy version.
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|
From: Grace Ch(‘arboneau [mailto:gcharboneau@stratanm.com]
.?ent Friday, October 17,2014 1:00 PM

o: 'Jim Ball
Subject: RE: Looks like I misspelled Sovereign's name on the Exhbit A header. I will change that.

Mr. Jim,

| spoke to Mitch'again about the title opinions and the drilling opinions. He basically said that we would provide you
with a copy of your section of the title opiniaon as a royalty owner. The full title opinion will not be provided to a royalty
owner hecause t;he royalty owner was not helping pay for the title opinion cost. Also, in the past, you might have been
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

Looks like { misspelled Sovereign's name on the Exhibit A header. | will change that.

Jim Ball

Landman

MATES

2 HOLDINGS

Yates Holdings LLP
P.O.Box 1394
Artesia, NM 882i11-1394
Direct Phone: (575) 736-8572
Main Phone: (57;5) 736-8575
Fax: {575) 736-8?77

.Email: ]imb@vatgsholdings.com




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

herefore does not accept liahility for any errors or omissions in the contents of this message, which arise as a result of
e-mail transmission. If verification is required please request a hard-copy version.




SOVEREIGN EAGLE, LLC

P.O.BOX 968 ROSWELL, NM 88202-0968

November!5, 2014

Mr. Jim Ba1

Yates Holdjings LLP

PO Box 1394

Artesia, NM 88211-1394
I

Re: Tule Field Marketing
Dear Jim, -

Mitch asked me to respond to your email of October 28" regarding Sovereign Eagle LLC's {Sovereign}
marketing of Tule Field products.

First | want to provide you some historical background of Sovereign’s history at Tule. Sovereign
purchased the Tule field in 2008 when it was making ~70 Mcfd from the 6 producing wells. Sovereign
immediately upgraded all of the facilities, began well work to hopefully re-establish the field as an
economic venture and was planning aeromag surveys that would hopefully lead to a seismic shoot.
By early 2011 the 6 wells were producing ~2,500 Mcfd, gas prices were $4.00/MMBtu , 2-D & 3-D
seismic was evaluated and Sovereign was planning development and exploratory driliing . Then in
April 2011 Transwestern decided to start enforcing the inert gas specifications on their pipeline and
ordered the field shut-in until we could remove enough nitrogen from the gas to meet their spec.
Sovereign produced enough gas to keep the leases alive and started up a year later, April 2012, with a
membrane system to remove nitrogen. Gas prices had dropped to $1.83/MMBtu. The membrane
technology was not a viable process so we shut-in again in Feb 2013 and started up in May 2013 with
our current processing system which is described in detail below and on the attached schematic.

Sovereign received State and Federal approval for off-lease measurement, storage and sales after
acquiring the field in 2008. All production is gathered & transported from the 6 producing wells to a
central facility. The produced water is pipelined from the central facility for disposal to the Powell
SWD well located in the field. Oil from the Cook #1 is stored at the central facility and sold arm’s
length to Shell Trading. Shell also arranges for the truck transport of the oil. After the wells are
individually separated and the gas is metered, the combined gas stream flows through another
separator and then enters the pressure swing absorption nitrogen removal plant. The nitrogen plant
is leased arm’s length from JACX Energy and the associated screw compressor is leased arm’s length
from Exterran. After nitrogen remova! the gas flows through a 3 stage compressor which is also
leased arlm's length from Exterran. The gas is then dehydrated by Sovereign & WI0’s and then flows
through a JT skid for NGL recovery which is leased arm’s length from Kinder Morgan. The NGL
stabilizer tower and NGL storage tank are also leased arm’s length from Kinder Morgan. NGL's are
sold arm’s length to ICAN Energy Company and they also handle the trucking of the NGLU's. The gas is
then recgmpressed to sales line pressure in a 2 stage compressor owned by Sovereign & WI0’s. There
is a 7 mile pipeline owned by Southbound Gas Company from the central facility to Transwestern’s



pipeline. Th(e gas is sold arm’s length to Southbound at the central facility based on Transwestern’s
index price less Southbound’s transport charge, which averages ~5.25/MMBtu. Sovereign & WIO's
also own a natural gas fueled genset to provide electricity for the central facility. Lease gas provides
the fuel cor{sumed at the central facility by the 3 compressors, the dehy and the genset. There is also

a small amount of gas vented as part of the IACX nitrogen removal process.

Sovereign & WIO's own the facilities that are not leased and Sovereign is only charging its arm’s
length direct costs and COPAS allowed direct and indirect charges. However, because the economics
of this project are so challenging with low gas prices and high operating costs, in May 2013 Sovereign
initiated discussions with the State about a processing allowance prior to the payment of State tax
and royalty when we started up the new processing plant. The allowance approved by the State and
implemented by Sovereign is $2.081/Mcf. It was calculated based on the 2013 estimated expenses
and projected gas volumes through the new facilities. Sovereign is applying the allowance prior to
payment of State taxes and all royalty interests except the federal government. The actual 2013
expenses and gas volumes would have allowed Sovereign to significantly increase the processing
aflowance for 2014 but Sovereign decided as a show of good faith to maintain the allowance at
$2.081/Mcf.

Sovereign continues to make improvements in the mechanics and efficiency of the processing
facilities and looks forward to the time when all of the interest owners are consistently making
money from the Tule project.

Because Tom Kelley at Yates Petroleum has recently inquired about the Tule project | have also sent
him a copy of this letter to help explain the current status. If you have other questions please let me
know.

Regards, \

David Lanning
Exploration & Development Manager

cc: Tom Kelley
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